
 

 

 
Wednesday, 21 August 2019 
 
To:   Members of the Sheffield City Region Infrastructure Board and Appropriate Officers 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are hereby summoned to a meeting of the Sheffield City Regional Infrastructure Board 
to be held at 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ, on: Thursday, 29 August 2019 at 
10.00 am for the purpose of transacting the business set out in the agenda. 
 

 
Dr Dave Smith 
Clerk to the Mayoral Combined Authority 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Member Distribution 
 
Mayor Ros Jones (Chair) Doncaster MBC 
Owen Michaelson (Co-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Councillor Tim Cheetham Barnsley MBC 
Councillor Bob Johnson Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Denise Lelliott Rotherham MBC 
Richard Stubbs Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Mark Lynam SCR Executive Team 
John Mothersole Sheffield City Council 
 



 

 

 
SCR - Infrastructure Board 
 

 
 

Thursday, 29 August 2019 at 10.00 am 
 
Venue: 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 
 

1.   Welcome and Apologies  Mayor Ros 
Jones 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest by individual Members in 
relation to any item of business on the agenda 
 
Declarations of Interest by individual Members in 
relation to any item of business on the agenda. 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 

 

3.   Urgent items / Announcements  Mayor Ros 
Jones 

 

4.   Public Questions of Key Decisions  Mayor Ros 
Jones 

 

5.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  Mayor Ros 
Jones 

5 - 10 

6.   Strategic Economic Plan and Local Industrial 
Strategy Review  

Guest 11 - 58 

7.   Draft SCR Energy Strategy  Sample 59 - 122 

8.   Digital Infrastructure  Mr Mark 
Lynam 

123 - 128 

9.   Infrastructure Board Work Programme Dashboard  Sample 129 - 130 

10.   Forward Plan 2019/20  Mr Mark 
Lynam 

131 - 132 

11.   SCR Transport Board Draft Agenda 30th Sept.2019  Mr Mark 
Lynam 

 

12.   Any Other Business  Mayor Ros 
Jones 

 

Date of next meeting: Thursday, 24 October 2019 at 10.00 am 
At:11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ  



This page is intentionally left blank



SCR - INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
TUESDAY, 9 JULY 2019 AT 9.00 AM 
 
11 BROAD STREET WEST, SHEFFIELD S1 2BQ 
 

 

 
Present: 
 
Mayor Ros Jones (Chair) Doncaster MBC 
Owen Michaelson (Co-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Councillor Tim Cheetham Barnsley MBC 
Councillor Denise Lelliott Rotherham MBC 
Richard Stubbs Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Mark Lynam SCR Executive Team 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
 
Colin Blackburn Assistant Director - Housing, 

Infrastructure and Planning 
SCR Executive Team 

Craig Tyler Minutes South Yorkshire Joint Authorities 
Governance Unit 

 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Bob Johnson Sheffield City Council 
John Mothersole Sheffield City Council 
 
 
1 Welcome and Apologies 

 
 Members apologies were noted as above. 

 
2 Declarations of Interest by individual Members 

 
 None. 

 
3 Urgent items / Announcements 

 
 None. 

 
4 Public Questions of Key Decisions 

 
 None. 

 
5 Governance And Terms Of Reference 

 
 A report was received to summarise the governance arrangements for the 

Infrastructure Board, to clarify the reporting obligations, and propose dates for 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

future meetings. 
 
It was questioned why all Boards have the same £2m scheme spending limit 
given that some Boards will be considering much larger schemes than others. It 
was noted the ‘rules’ have been set by the MCA and LEP. 
 
Members asserted a desire to not be asked to consider or vote on a scheme 
that is not already well known to them. Officers provided assurances 
appropriate information would always be provided as schemes progress 
through the pipeline. 
 
Members questioned the reference to Board quoracy and whether named 
officers are included in the quorum. 
 
Action: Craig to quantify what the rules are for thematic board quoracy 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board: 
 

1. Notes the governance arrangements, reporting obligations and 
proposed future dates 

 
2.      Agrees for Board meetings to be scheduled in accordance with     
the proposal set out in paragraph 2.2 

 
6 SCR Infrastructure Board Activities And Work Programme 

 
 A report and presentation were received to provide a summary of the areas of 

activity that the Infrastructure Board will have responsibility for. 
 
It was noted that within the SCR context, infrastructure covers a wide variety of 
work areas inclusive of energy, planning, blue and green infrastructure, digital 
connectivity and the public estate in addition to major projects (unless under 
the oversight of an alternate thematic board). 
 
Members requested more information to provide a breakdown of the 
infrastructure investment programme to explain what schemes are in contract, 
in pipeline or currently unfunded. It was agreed this would be a substantive 
item at the next meeting. 
 
Action: Mark / Colin to present a breakdown of the infrastructure investment 
pipeline to the next meeting. 
 
Regarding digital connectivity, it was questioned what the SCR can actually do 
with limited funding to support the substantial work being undertaken by the 
private sector. It was suggested there are a number of ways the SCR can act 
as an ‘enabler’ to assist the private sector’s implementation of new digital 
infrastructure. 
 
The presentation concluded with details of the timelines for delivery of the 
existing programme of work 
 
Members questioned whether the reporting dashboard is fit for purpose. It was 

Page 6



 

acknowledged there is a significant amount of data to present but requested a 
simplified means of confirming ‘how a scheme is doing’ be provided more 
clearly.  
 
Action: Colin to address the Board’s comments for future programme reporting. 
 
Cllr Cheetham noted the importance of recognising the lessons learnt from past 
regional digital connectivity projects. 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board: 
 

1. Notes the current SCR strategic infrastructure activities being 
undertaken, which fall within the role and remit of the Infrastructure 
Board 

 
2.   Notes the Dashboard proposals to monitor progress on both the           
Infrastructure Board’s activities and the SCR Local Growth Fund scheme 
investments 

 
7 Developing The Infrastructure Project Pipeline 

 
 A report and presentation were received to provide an update on delivery 

against the objectives of the SCR Integrated Infrastructure Plan  
 
Members were asked to consider and agree a process for bringing forward 
short, medium and long term infrastructure priorities. 
 
Members were reminded the SCR Integrated Infrastructure Plan 2015-2025 
(IIP) was published in 2015 to set out the potential scale and geographical 
extent of infrastructure investment required in the SCR to support the delivery 
of the SCR Strategic Economic Plan through the remaining 6 years of the plan 
and beyond. 
 
It was noted a key principle of the IIP is to deliver an integrated package of 
infrastructure investment in order to unlock investable growth opportunities. 
 
It was suggested that developing a robust project pipeline in this way, will 
enable a more strategic and proactive approach to infrastructure investment 
that is aligned with both the scale and timing of growth in different priority 
‘places;’ rather than be reactive to just an open call of schemes at any given 
time. It will also enable a greater understanding of how limited resources, 
including project management type resources, could be better employed and 
when to maximise impacts in bringing forward strategic schemes for 
development. 
 
The Board was informed that to develop this project pipeline, it is proposed to 
hold initial ‘place’ workshops over the Summer with districts, with the sessions 
covering all elements of infrastructure including energy, digital, green 
infrastructure and transport. This exercise will also be used to review the 
validity of the existing IIP spatial packages in light of the SEP refresh and the 
Local Industrial Strategy Review. 
 

Page 7



 

Members recognised the importance of this piece of work and urged officers to 
not limit forward programming to known funding sources. It was agreed this is a 
great opportunity to champion the scale of the SCR’s ambition. 
 
Members considered what we can ‘do differently’ to achieve this ambition. 
 
It was acknowledged there is a discussion to be had to determine how 
preparatory work to develop schemes is funded given revenue budget 
constraints. 
 
This report summarises the work programme being developed by the SCR 
Heads of Planning Group and presents a draft Statement of Common Ground, 
for endorsement by Board members. 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board: 
 

1. Note the progress to date made in delivering the SCR Integrated 
Infrastructure Plan. 

2.      Supports the proposed approach to developing the Infrastructure 
Pipeline including holding more detailed ‘place’ conversations with 
districts, and potentially other key bodies over the Summer around 
infrastructure projects to support growth. 

 
8 SCR Statement Of Common Ground 

 
 A report was received to summarise the work programme being developed by 

the SCR Heads of Planning Group and to present a draft Statement of 
Common Ground, for endorsement by Board members. 
 
The importance of this being undertaken was acknowledged and it was 
recognised that roads don’t stop at borders and major schemes in one district 
have cross border effects in others. 
 
Members requested the Statement attain appropriate political support in each 
Local Authority ahead of its formal adoption by the SCR. 
 
Members questioned why this matter was being brought before the 
Infrastructure Board given the existing ‘duty to co-operate’ which already 
prescribes how the districts will work together on planning matters. It was noted 
the purpose of the Statement is essentially to enforce that approach and would 
support Local Plans and support Local Planning Authorities at Local Plan 
Examinations. 
 
It was suggested the Statement will essentially be a mechanism via which the 
MCA and LEP can be assured planning positions are collectively supported by 
all Local Planning Authorities. 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board: 
 

1. Notes and supports the work programme being developed by Heads 
of Planning 

 

Page 8



 

2. Notes the requirement to prepare a Statement of Common Ground 
and its purpose to both support Local Plans and support Local 
Planning Authorities at Local Plan Examinations 

 
3.      Supports the draft Statement of Common Ground and requests that 
Local Planning Authorities are requested to consider endorsing and being 
a signatory to the Statement. 

 
9 Capital Programme: Schemes for Approval 

 
 Members were acquainted with the processes that would be adopted for 

scheme approvals going forward. 
 

10 Any Other Business 
 

 None. 
 

 
In accordance with Combined Authority’s Constitution/Terms of Reference for the Board, 
Board decisions need to be ratified by the Head of Paid Services (or their nominee) in 
consultation with the Chair of the Board. Accordingly, the undersigned has consulted with 
the Chair and hereby ratifies the decisions set out in the above minutes. 
 
Signed  

Name  

Position  

Date  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1. Introduction

1.1 The City Region is developing a new Economic Strategy for the region.
The Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) will be a single overarching strategy which will set out 
the wider socio-economic aspirations and inclusive priorities for SCR over the medium to 
long term (10 years for the plan and 20 years for the vision).  
Falling out of the SEP will be a Local Industrial Strategy (LIS). This will align with the 
National Industrial Strategy and drive long-term productivity growth. This will be agreed with 
Government. 

The work on the evidence base is reaching completion. This highlights a set of key 
messages which will shape the emerging priorities for the SEP and LIS. This paper provides 
a summary of the evidence base, including in relation to ‘Infrastructure.’ 

Purpose of Report 

The paper and accompanying presentation provide Board members with the following: 

• an overview of the current economic landscape in Sheffield City Region

• emerging evidence and priority areas for SCR

Members will be provided with an understanding of the evidence base and the emerging narrative for 
the Sheffield City Region (SCR) Strategic Economic Plan and Local Industrial Strategy. The 
presentation will inform a discussion of the next stage of development of priorities for the economic 
plan. 

Thematic Priority 

This paper links to all thematic priorities and the eventual outputs will shape the thematic priorities in 
the future.  

Freedom of Information 

This paper may be released under a Freedom of Information request. In this section, it must be clear if 
the paper has any exemption under Part II of the Freedom of Information Act 2000  

Recommendations 

That Board members: 

• Note the summarised evidence base presented;

• Discuss the emerging areas for prioritisation and agree these as areas for strategy work.

INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD 

29th AUGUST 2019 

STRATEGIC ECONOMIC PLAN AND LOCAL INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/36/part/II


2. Proposal and justification

2.1 The attached slides, which will be presented to the Board, provides:

• an overview of the evidence base and current challenges; and

• the potential focus of future priorities

The presentation aims to stimulate discussion on the future policy direction and priority 
areas for SCR and where the LEP/MCA can add most value/impact.  

2.2 Given the role of the LEP, the analysis has focused on socio-economic data on the economy, 
productivity, labour market, business base and infrastructure. This aligns with the themes set 
out in the national industrial strategy and adopts a broader focus around inclusive growth that 
builds on the City Region’s strengths.  

2.3 The development of the 2014 SEP and the work undertaken on the LIS documents that 
have been published, illustrate the strengths of a comprehensive and rigorous evidence 
base when negotiating with Government. Following feedback, the evidence base will be 
further developed in areas where the analysis is lighter (e.g. culture). 

2.4 Given the evidence pack’s length, a summary is attached as an appendix. An additional, 
technical evidence document is available for LEP Board members on request. 

2.5 Board Members are invited to consider the evidence, particularly in respect of ‘infrastructure’ 
issues and activities in relation to the economic strategy. 

In the emerging SEP, infrastructure will be considered as part of the “Place” objectives 
which in turn will complement the “Opportunity” and “Prosperity” objectives. The emerging 
vision is focused on our “People” (all who live, work or visit SCR). The emerging 
infrastructure policies aim to transform connectivity (digital and transport), coherent urban 
centres, viable sub-urban towns and settlements and our cultural offer to deliver sustainable 
attractive places where people and businesses chose to locate and can thrive. 

Further work to develop the propositions will be brought back to the Board for consideration, 
in accordance with the Board’s agreed Forward Plan. 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1 There are no viable alternatives propositions as the LEP/MCA has empowered the Thematic
Boards to: 

• Contribute to future policy development and priorities;

• Develop new programmes.

4. Implications

4.1 Financial 
There are no financial implications to this paper. 

4.2 Legal 
There are no legal implications to this paper. 

4.3 Risk Management 
Through the development of programmes, appropriate risk measures will be put in place in 
line with the SCR Risk Management Programme.  

4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
The presentation considers all aspects of society to understand where opportunities aren’t 
available or where particular barriers are preventing residents from accessing opportunities. 

Page 12



5. Communications

5.1 All propositions developed by Thematic Boards to support the SEP / LIS will be
communicated to and subject to agreement by the LEP / MCA to adopt the new policy. 

A communications plan underpins the work to develop the SEP and the LIS, and specific 
work resulting from this. The SCR Corporate Communications plan will reflect agreed LEP, 
Mayoral and MCA priorities. 

6. Appendices/Annexes

6.1  Appendix 1 – Summary of Evidence Base

REPORT AUTHOR Jonathan Guest 
POST Senior Economic Policy Manager 

Officer responsible Felix Kumi-Ampofo 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email Felix.Kumi-Ampofo@Sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone T: 0114 220 3416 

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

Other sources and references: 

• Strategic Economic Plan Evidence Base – 2019 (Summary Evidence Pack) – Appendix A.

• Relevant documents available on the website:

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/explore/resources/

Page 13

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/explore/resources/


This page is intentionally left blank



SEP & LIS EVIDENCE

June 2019

Appendix 1

P
age 15



THE SCALE OF THE ECONOMIC CHALLENGE
Labour Productivity Across British Cities in 1971 and 2014  (Gross Value Added per employed worker at 2011 prices)

P
age 16



ECONOMIC OUTPUT (GVA - 2016)

Sheffield:
Size of Economy: £12billion 
(33.6% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 11.7%

Doncaster:
Size of Economy: £5.5 billion  
(15.2% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 19.7%

Barnsley: 
Size of Economy: £3.6 billion
(10.7% of SCR)
Growth Since 2011: 19.6%

Rotherham
Size of Economy: £4.8 billion 
(13.3%of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 18.5%

Source: ONS GVA Estimates 2018

Bolsover:
Size of Economy: £1.5 billion 
(4.5% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 29.1%

Derbyshire Dales:
Size of Economy: £1.7 billion 
(5% SCR)
Growth since 2011: 12.5%

Chesterfield:
Size of Economy: £2.2 billion 
(6.4% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 18.4%

North East Derbyshire:
Size of Economy: £1.4 billion 
(4.3% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 11.38%

Bassetlaw
Size of Economy: £2.3 billion 
(6.9% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 16.1%

P
age 17



GVA PER HEAD (2017)

Sheffield:
GVA per head: £19,870
Growth since 2011: 7.1%

Doncaster:
GVA per head: £16,897
Growth since 2011: 18.1%

Barnsley: 
GVA per head: £15,072
Growth since 2011:  15%

Rotherham
GVA per head: £17,289
Growth since 2011: 16.6%

Source: ONS GVA Estimates 2018

Bolsover:
GVA per head: £19,841
Growth since 2011: 25.7%

Derbyshire Dales:
GVA per head: £23,989
Growth since 2011: 12.2%

Chesterfield:
GVA per head: £20,987
Growth since 2011: 17.6%

North East Derbyshire:
GVA per head: £14,676
Growth since 2011: 10.3%

Bassetlaw
GVA per head: £20,446
Growth since 2011: 14.3%

P
age 18



GVA PER WORKER (2017)

Sheffield:
GVA per head: £50,600
Growth since 2011: -1.44%

Doncaster:
GVA per head: £48,800
Growth since 2011: 0.12%

Barnsley: 
GVA per head: £46,800
Growth since 2011:  -2%

Rotherham
GVA per head: £48,000
Growth since 2011: -0.46%

Source: ONS GVA Estimates 2018

Bolsover:
GVA per head: £47,800
Growth since 2011: 4.2%

Derbyshire Dales:
GVA per head: £52,500
Growth since 2011: 10.2%

Chesterfield:
GVA per head: £57,600
Growth since 2011: 15.9%

North East Derbyshire:
GVA per head: £58,000
Growth since 2011: 5.7%

Bassetlaw
GVA per head: £47,500
Growth since 2011: 0.96%

P
age 19



EUROPEAN COMPARISONS

 £15,000

 £16,000

 £17,000

 £18,000

 £19,000

 £20,000

 £21,000

 £22,000

 £23,000

 £24,000

 £25,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

GDP Per Head (£)

Sheffield City Region Combined Authority Perpignan & Beziers and surrounding area Warsaw

Perugia and surrounding area Balearic Islands Rostock and surrounding area

Source: Eurostat GDP Regional Estimates 2018

P
age 20



GVA per Hour Worked, 2004 to 2017

GDP per Worker, 2008 to 2017

GDP per Filled Job (£), 2002 to 2017

GVA AND GDP COMPARISON - MOVING GRAPHS

P
age 21

https://public.flourish.studio/visualisation/297718/
https://public.flourish.studio/visualisation/303869/


SIZE OF OUR ECONOMY

Current 
Economy 

(2017/18): 
£35bn

Size of 
economy if 

productivity 
matched UK 

(minus 
London): 

£40bn

Size of 
economy if 

productivity 
matched UK 

(with London): 
£44bn

Size of 
economy if 

productivity 
matched 

South East:
£46bn

Size of 
economy if 

productivity 
matched 
London:
£62bn

P
age 22



EMPLOYMENT

Source: Annual Population Survey 2018 & EMSI 2018

62.0%

64.0%

66.0%

68.0%

70.0%

72.0%

74.0%

76.0%

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Economy Activity Rate (%)

SCR England

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

Sheffield Barnsley Doncaster Rotherham

Employment Growth 2011-2017

P
age 23



EMPLOYMENT GROWTH

Sheffield:
255,250 (34% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 7.6%

Doncaster:
121,350 (16% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 11.1%

Barnsley: 
78,600 (10% of SCR)
Growth since 2011:  9.6%

Rotherham
104,443 (14% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 11.4%

Source: EMSI 2018

Bolsover:
33,130 (4% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 13.6%

Derbyshire Dales:
34,050 (5% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: -4%

Chesterfield:
50,740 (7% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 3.3%

North East Derbyshire:
27,540 (4% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 1.57%

Bassetlaw
50,900 (7% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 12.1%

P
age 24



EMPLOYMENT GROWTH

Sheffield:
255,250 (34% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 7.6%

Doncaster:
121,350 (16% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 11.1%

Barnsley: 
78,600 (10% of SCR)
Growth since 2011:  9.6%

Rotherham
104,443 (14% of SCR)
Growth since 2011: 11.4%

Source: EMSI 2018

Economic Activity Rate in SCR: 
73.2%

Economic Activity Rate in England:
74.9%

Current Gap 
(closing since 2016): 

1.7%

BUT rise in employment has been in 
low skill, low pay sectors – jobs 
threatened by automation 

P
age 25



EMPLOYMENT

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Sheffield Barnsley Doncaster Rotherham

Employment Growth 2011-2017

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%

Sheffield Doncaster Rotherham Barnsley

Employment Growth in low pay 
sectors, 2010-2017

• Barnsley has seen good employment growth with above the national 
average growth in higher level occupations

• However, Sheffield’s overall numbers rather than percentage change 
is about the same as the other three districts combined

• Barnsley’s employment growth in higher level occupations is 
positive, but it has seen a high proportion of its growth in low pay 
sectors

P
age 26



P
age 27



P
age 28



UNEMPLOYMENT & ECONOMIC INACTIVITY

0.0 2.0 4.0 6.0 8.0 10.0 12.0 14.0 16.0 18.0 20.0

 aged 16-19

 aged 20-24

 aged 25-34

 aged 35-49

 aged 50+

 aged 50-64

 aged 65+

%

Unemployment Rate

UK Sheffield City Region

Source: Annual Survey or Hours & Earnings 2018 & Annual Population Survey 2018 Source: ONS – Annual Population Survey 2017

Reasons for Economic Inactivity

P
age 29



SKILLS
Passes in English & Maths

Source: DfE (2018) and Annual Population Survey (2018)

Passes in English & Maths (GCSE 2016/17)

% pupils 

who 

achieved a 

strong 9-5 

pass

% of 

pupils 

who 

achieved a 

standard 9-

4 pass

England 40% 59%

Yorkshire and The Humber 41% 62%

Barnsley 39% 60%

Doncaster 39% 58%

Rotherham 37% 59%

Sheffield 39% 60%

Derbyshire 42% 65%

Nottinghamshire 46% 66%

English and maths 

GCSEs

Geography

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

45.0

50.0

%
 o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g 

A
ge

% with NVQ4+

% with no qualifications (NVQ)

England - % with NVQ4+

England - % with no qualifications (NVQ)

% of residents with NVQ 4 and No Qualifications

P
age 30



SKILLS IN OUR WORKFORCE

Current High Level 
Skills in Working 
Age Population 

(2017/8): 

32.5%
373,100

High Level Skills in 
Working Age 

Population if share 
matched UK levels

(38.3%):
439,450

Gap: 
66,000 people

P
age 31



BUSINESSES

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

En
te

rp
ri

se
s

Growth “Sectors” in Sheffield City Region

Source: ONS Enterprise Estimates

Enterprises by year in Sheffield City Region

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Warehousing
and support
activities for

transportation

Security and
investigation

activities

Other
professional,
scientific and

technical
activities

Repair and
installation of

machinery and
equipment

Rental and
leasing activities

Scientific
research and
development

Advertising and
market research

Water
collection,

treatment and
supply

Manufacture of
beverages

Insurance,
reinsurance and

pension
funding, except

compulsory
social security

En
te

rp
ri

se
s

Growth Between 2011-2017

P
age 32



INFRASTRUCTURE

Vulnerability to oil price change (Red = Highly Vulnerable)

Source: Mattioli, G , Wadud, Z  and Lucas, K  (2018) Vulnerability to fuel price increases in the UK: A household level analysis. 
Transportation Research Part A: Policy and Practice, 113. pp. 227-242. & DFT (Yorkshire Figures) 2018

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Less than
2km

2km to less
than 5km

5km to less
than 10km

10km to
less than

20km

20km to
less than

30km

30km to
less than

40km

40km to
less than

60km

60km and
over

Distance travelled to work

England Black Country
Greater Birmingham and Solihull Greater Lincolnshire
Sheffield City Region Greater Manchester
South Yorkshire

P
age 33



HOUSING
Net Additional Housing

Source: MHCLG Live Table 122; Net Additional Dwellings by 
Local Authority Districts

Geography House Price 

England £249,400

Yorkshire and Humber £162,000

Barnsley £124,100

Doncaster £124,100

Rotherham £140,600

Sheffield £167,900

Bassetlaw £158,100

Bolsover £125,700

Chesterfield £157,800

Derbyshire Dales £267,300

North East Derbyshire £178,600

Average house prices 

P
age 34



DIGITAL Coverage of superfast broadband (Blue & White = At risk or not covered)

• Although superfast 
broadband (30mbps) 
coverage is over 97%, 
businesses and domestic 
consumers will require 
100mbps to one gigabit 
connectivity over the next 
5-10 years. 

This will require full fibre 
coverage and currently the 
city region has only half the 
national average coverage 
unless FTTP and FTTH 
investment is accelerated.

P
age 35



TRADE & INWARD INVESTMENT

£0

£2,000

£4,000

£6,000

£8,000

£10,000

£12,000

£14,000

£16,000

£18,000

£20,000

West
Midlands

Merseyside Greater
Manchester

West
Yorkshire

Tees Valley
and Durham

South
Yorkshire

Lincolnshire

EU Non EU

FDI by Project Type 2006-16 (94 Projects)EU & Non EU Exports of Goods (by Value)

4%

59%

37%

Co-location New Expansion

Source: FDI Trends 2016 & DTI Export Estimates 2018

P
age 36



INNOVATION
Make up of investment in UK R&D 

67.08%

53.53%

32.47%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

United Kingdom

Yorkshire and the Humber

SCR

Government Higher
Education

Business Private Non-Profit

Source: ONS (2018) UK gross domestic expenditure on research and development

£33.1 
billion

£1.4 
billion

£323 
million

P
age 37



PRODUCTIVITY

SCR: 
£43,500 per worker

UK (without London):
£49,760 per worker 

Current Gap (increasing): 
£6,260

P
age 38



WAGES

Wages Residents (2018):
• SCR: £517 per week (annual growth of 1.7%)
• UK: £569 per week (annual growth of 2%)

P
age 39



RESEARCH EXCELLENCE & ENGAGEMENT

P
age 40



INNOVATION EXPERTISE IN SCR

P
age 41



INCLUSIVE 
GROWTH

P
age 42



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

29

OUT-OF-WORK BENEFITS

• Working age out-of-work benefits include JSA, ESA and IS 
for lone parents.

• Between 2010 and 2016, the proportion of the working 
age population claiming such benefits decreased by 3.8 
percentage points in SCR. 

• This compares to a fall of 3.6 percentage points nationally 
and 5.9 percentage points in Liverpool City Region. 

• The gap between SCR and the Great Britain average 

remained virtually unchanged.

• In 2016, 10.3 per cent of the working age  population in 
SCR were claiming out-of-work benefits compared to 12.9 
per cent in Tees Valley CA.

• There is a wide variation in claimant rates within SCR 
ranging from 11.9 per cent in Barnsley  to 4.8 per cent in 
Derbyshire Dales.

⎻ Benefit claimant rate as % of 16-64 year olds

⎻ Source: Department for Work 
and Pensions

Inclusion: Income dimension

P
age 43



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

30

IN-WORK TAX CREDITS

• The proportion of working households 
receiving Tax Credits fell considerably 
post-2010 partly due to new 
restrictions to the eligibility criteria.

• In 2016,  27.8 per cent of working 
households in SCR relied on in-work 
benefits which was  higher than the 
national rate (24 per cent) but lower 
than the other benchmark areas.

• There is a wide variation in the rates 
across SCR ranging from 34.6 per cent 
of working households in Doncaster 
and 16.4 per cent in  Derbyshire Dales.

• The rate of decline in SCR over the 
period is similar to that seen nationally, 
in Liverpool City Region and in Tees 
Valley. 

• West Midlands continued to have a 
high dependency on in-work benefits.

⎻ Percentage of working households in receipt of Tax Credits

⎻ Source: HM Revenue and Customs

Inclusion: Income dimension

P
age 44



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

31

LOW EARNINGS

• The figures represent the gross weekly earnings for 
residents (before deductions) of the lowest paid 20 per 
cent of full-time workers.

• The gradual upward trend reflects the sluggish growth in 
wages and salaries post-2010.

• SCR experienced the lowest increase of areas 
considered, from £196 to £217 (11 per cent, as against 
14 per cent nationally).

• Authorities within SCR CA experienced similar growth to 
national trends. But, wages for the workers in the lowest 

20 per cent in Derbyshire Dales and NE Derbyshire fell 
over the period (by 12 per cent and 6 per cent 
respectively).

• Strong growth in Tees Valley meant that this area 
overtook SCR wage levels by 2015-2017.

• This meant the gap between SCR and the national 
average grew from £12 to £21 per week compared to 
Tees Valley which narrowed the gap from £30 to £15 
over the same period. 

⎻ Lower quintile for weekly earnings, resident analysis

⎻ Source: Office for National Statistics Annual 
Survey of Hours and Earnings

Inclusion: Income dimension

P
age 45



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

32

HOUSING AFFORDABILITY

• Apart from a brief post-crisis dip in 
2008/9 the house price/earnings ratio 
in England has continued to increase 
(7.9 in 2017).

• This pattern has been mirrored in the 
West Midlands, albeit at a lower rate.

• In the other three areas the ratio has 
been more stable in the post-crisis 
period. 

• In Sheffield City Region the ratio 
increased marginally, from 5.30 in 2010 
to 5.44 in 2017.

• Over the same period the ratios for 
Liverpool City Region and Tees Valley 
went down slightly, so that both are 
now below 5.

• In 2017, within SCR the ratio ranged 
from 4.4 in Barnsley to 7.7 in 
Derbyshire Dales.

⎻ Ratio of lower quartile house prices to lower 
quartile gross annual residence-based earnings

⎻ Source: DCLG Housing Statistics

Inclusion: Living costs dimension

P
age 46



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

33

PRIVATE SECTOR RENTS

• Private rented sector (PRS) rents in England increased 
slowly during the first half of the decade, but have 
grown considerably more recently.

• West Midlands is on a similar trajectory, although its 
median monthly rent has been consistently £50 below 
the national average.

• Rent levels have were relatively static in Liverpool City 
Region and Tees Valley each with a marginal increase of 
just one per cent during the period.

• The median rent in SCR increased by 7 per cent (from 
£460 to £490) but there is a wide variation within SCR:  
just 1 per cent increase in Rotherham and 11 per cent in 
Sheffield. 

• This compares with a 13 per cent increase nationally, 
which widens the gap between SCR and England from 
£105 to £150 per week.

• Housing Benefit LHA rates for PRS tenants has been 
frozen since 2016.

⎻ Median monthly rents for private sector two bedroom 
properties (£p.c.m)

⎻ Source: Valuation Office Agency Private Rental Sector Market Statistics

⎻ Indices of median monthly rents for private sector two 
bedroom properties (2010-2012=100)

Inclusion: Living costs dimension

P
age 47



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

34

FUEL POVERTY

• A decline in fuel poverty was seen across all areas at the 
beginning of the period. 

• With the exception of the West Midlands, fuel poverty 
rates increased slightly in all other areas between 2012-
2014 and 2014-2016.

• Households in fuel poverty in SCR increased by 8 per cent 
between 2012-2014 and 2014-2016 compared to 6 per 
cent in England, 10 per cent in Liverpool City Region and 
17 per cent in Tees Valley. 

• There are approximately 90,000 'fuel poor' households in 
SCR equivalent to 11.6 per cent of all households; this 
compares with 10.9 per cent in England.

• Within SCR, fuel poverty rates range from 10.4 per cent in 
NE Derbyshire to 12.3 per cent in Sheffield.

⎻ Percentage of households which are fuel poor

⎻ Source: DECC/DBEIS Fuel poverty sub-regional 
statistics

Inclusion: Living costs dimension

P
age 48



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

35

UNEMPLOYMENT

• These figures relate to all those who are actively seeking 
work and are able to start work.

• The unemployment rates peaked across all areas in 
2011-2013 and have fallen continuously since then.

• Unemployment dropped by 42 per cent in SCR since 
2011-2013 similar to the patterns elsewhere: Tees Valley 
(-43 per cent), West Midlands (-37 per cent) and Great 
Britain (-39 per cent).

• Unemployment in Liverpool City Region halved over the 
same period and by 2016-2018 the unemployment rate 
stood at 5 per cent compared to 4.7 per cent in Great 
Britain .

• In 2016-2018, the unemployment rate in SCR was 5.7 
per cent but ranged from 3.3 per cent in  NE Derbyshire 
to 6.6 per cent in Sheffield.

⎻ Unemployment 
as a percentage 

of 16-64 year olds

⎻ Source: Annual Population Survey

Inclusion: Labour Market Inclusion

P
age 49



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

36

ECONOMIC INACTIVITY

• Although there has been a steady 
decrease in economic inactivity 
rates in Great Britain as a whole, 
trends in the four sub-national 
areas have been more variable.

• In SCR the rate fell quickly at first, 
almost approaching the national 
average, before increasing again 
from 2014-2016.

• This means that the current gap 
between the two remains the 
same as in 2010-2012.

• The three comparator areas all 
have higher economic inactivity 
rates, with Liverpool City Region 
and West Midlands respectively 
standing at 3.3 and 4.7 percentage 
points above Sheffield City Region. 

⎻ Economically inactive (aged 16-64)

⎻ Source: Annual Population Survey

Inclusion: Labour Market Inclusion

P
age 50



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

37

INCAPACITY BENEFITS

• These are income-replacement benefits for those unable to 
work due to sickness or disability and includes: ESA, it's 
predecessors IB and SDA, and new claimants of Universal 
Credit Limited Capability to Work.

• There are 80,000 claimants of incapacity benefits in SCR and 
they account for two out of three of all out-of-work benefits 
claimants in SCR.

• Between 2010 and 2018, the claimant rate in SCR decreased 
by 1.5 percentage points compared to a fall of 1.1 percentage 
points nationally.

• In 2018, 6.8 per cent of the working age population in SCR 
claimed incapacity benefits. Whilst higher than the national 
rate of 5.6 per cent it is far lower than Liverpool City Region 
with a rate of 9.1 per cent. 

• In 2018, the incapacity benefits claimant rate ranged from 8.1 
per cent in  Chesterfield to 4 per cent in Derbyshire Dales.

• The claimant rate in Barnsley fell the fastest of all SCR districts 
by 3.4 percentage points to 7.4 per cent in 2018.

⎻ Incapacity benefits claimant rate as 
percentage of 16-64 year olds

⎻ Source: DWP

Inclusion: Labour Market Inclusion

P
age 51



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

38

WORKLESS HOUSEHOLDS

• The number of workless 
households has declined since the 
recession.

• However, in SCR the rate 
plateaued in 2012-2014 at around 
19 per cent whereas in the other 
areas and nationally the rate 
continued to decline.

• The gap between SCR and the 
national rate therefore increased 
from 2.6 percentage points in 
2012-2014 to 4.4 percentage 
points in 2015-2017.

• The rates vary widely within SCR 
with 20.2 per cent of working age 
households in Barnsley being 
workless compared to 11.9 per 
cent in Derbyshire Dales.

⎻ Percentage of working age households with no one in work 

⎻ Source: Annual Population Survey - households by combined economic activity status

Inclusion: Labour Market Inclusion

P
age 52



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

39

WAGES AND EARNINGS
• Median gross weekly pay for 

full-time employees has grown 
at a similar pace across areas: 10 
per cent in Great Britain and 
Liverpool City Region, 9 per cent 
in SCR and Tees Valley, 12 per 
cent in West Midlands.  

• In SCR the median weekly wage 
is £502 which is £53 lower than 
the national average. This gap 
has increased over the period.

• There are big differences within 
the region ranging from £447 a 
week for employees in Bolsover 
compared to £527 a week for 
those in Sheffield. 

• Workers in Barnsley experienced 
15 per cent wage growth over 
the period compared to 3 per 
cent in Chesterfield.

⎻Median gross weekly pay, full-time employees

⎻ Source: Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings - Workplace analysis

Prosperity: Growth

P
age 53



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

40

DISABILITY EMPLOYMENT RATE

• Increasing employment amongst people with long-term 
health conditions or people with disabilities is a key objects 
of the Government's Improving Lives White Paper.

• Nationally, employment rates for this group (Equality Act 
Core or Work Limited disabled) is far lower than amongst 
the non-disabled in 2016-2018; 51.6 per cent compared to 
80.8 per cent.

• National employment rates amongst people with long-term 
health conditions or disabled people have improved since 
2014-2016 by 2.9 percentage points. 

• SCR experienced a slower rate of increase over the period 

of 1.2 percentage points to 47.6 per cent. 

• This compares to an SCR employment rate for the non-
disabled group of 80 per cent which is closer to the national 
average for this group.

• However, the disability employment rate in SCR is far higher 
than in the other comparator areas: Tees Valley, 42.5 per 
cent; Liverpool, 43 per cent; and West Midlands 43.4 per 
cent.

⎻ Disability employment rate 16-64 
year olds

⎻ Source: Annual 
Population Survey

Prosperity: Employment

P
age 54



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

41

EMPLOYMENT IN LOW PAY SECTORS

• The proportion of employment 
which is in low pay sectors 
increased over time in SCR to 
33.1 per cent in 205-2017, 
bringing it closer to the national 
average (33.8 per cent).

• With the exception of the Tees 
Valley LEP, SCR is slightly below 
the comparator areas.

• The 11 per cent growth in 
employment in low pay sectors 
in SCR is on par with the 10 per 
cent seen nationally.

• Within the SCR growth of 4 per 
cent was seen in Chesterfield 
and NE Derbyshire and 16 per 
cent was seen in Barnsley and 
Derbyshire Dales.

⎻ Employment in low pay sectors

⎻ Source: Business Register and Employment Survey

Notes: Low pay sectors include 'Wholesale and retail trade; repair of motor vehicles and motorcycles', 'Accommodation and 
food service activities', 'Administrative and support service activities', 'Residential care activities'. 

Prosperity: Employment

P
age 55



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

42

HIGHER LEVEL OCCUPATIONS

• 38 per cent of residents in SCR 
were employed in higher level 
occupations in 2016-2018 
compared to 45 per cent 
nationally.

• Whilst the Tees Valley and West 
Midlands have comparable rates 
to Sheffield City Region, the 
Liverpool LEP has seen a much 
more rapid growth. 

• The number of jobs in higher 
level occupations increased by 
10 per cent in SCR over the 
period which is similar to the 
growth in Tees Valley.

• National growth of jobs in these 
sectors was 15 per cent, 16 per 
cent in West Midlands and 18 
per cent in Liverpool.

⎻ Employment in higher level occupations

⎻ Source: Annual Population Survey

Prosperity: Human Capital

Notes: Higher level occupations includes: SOC 1- Managers, Directors and Senior Officials; SOC 2 - Professional Occupations; SOC
3 - Associate Professional and Technical Occupations. 

P
age 56



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

43

LIFE EXPECTANCY AT BIRTH

• Life expectancy for both males and females has increased 
nationally, and across the comparator areas, since the 
turn of the century. 

• Life expectancy for both males and females appears to 
have plateaued somewhat since the early 2010s.

• The life expectancy of males born in 2014-2016 in SCR 
was 78.5 years and for females was 82 years.

• The gain in life expectancy over the period is similar to 
nationally, is higher than in the comparator areas for men 

and on par with West Midlands for women.

• Tees Valley experienced a slight decline in life expectancy 
for both men and women in recent years.

• Life expectancy has also fallen recently for men or women 
in many of the individual local authorities within SCR and 
in Bolsover it has fallen for both. 

⎻ Males Life Expectancy at Birth (years) ⎻ Females Life Expectancy at Birth (years)

⎻ Source: Office for National Statistics

Additional indicators

P
age 57



Sheffield City Region Inclusive Growth

44

CHILDREN IN LOW INCOME FAMILIES

• Nationally, 17 per cent of children are in low-income families; a figure 
that has decreased slightly in the period 2012-2016. 

• In SCR, this figure has remained at slightly more than 20 per cent of 
children.

• SCR has tended to have a lower rate than comparator sub-national 
areas. However, this gap has narrowed over time. In particular, the gap 
from Liverpool City region decreased from over 4 percentage points to 

less than 1 percentage point by the end of the period. 

• There is a wide variation in the rate across SCR districts ranging from 9 
per cent of children in Derbyshire Dales to 23 per cent in Sheffield.

⎻ Percentage of children in low income families

⎻ Source: HM Revenue & Customs

P
age 58



1. Introduction

1.1 The development of an Energy Strategy for Sheffield City Region (SCR) is a response to
the SCR Integrated Infrastructure Plan (IIP) which commits the Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) and the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) to producing a low carbon 
energy strategy. 

1.2 An Economic Baseline (Phase 1) and an Energy Technology Appraisal (Phase 2) for the 
Strategy were completed in early 2018 and previously reported to the former SCR Housing 
and Infrastructure Executive Board.  The emerging strategic priorities along with the results 
of a more detailed analysis of heat, power and transport energy across SCR was 
considered and supported by the HIEB, with some amendments, at its meeting in 
September 2018. 

1.3 Since then, the Carbon Trust were commissioned to support the SCR in preparing the 
Draft SCR Energy Strategy document itself.  An initial draft by the Carbon Trust was 
considered in light of emerging work on the revised SCR Strategic Economic Plan and 

Purpose of Report 

This report presents the emerging Draft SCR Energy Strategy.  The Strategy is still a work in progress 
and views are sought on the emerging goals and policies before the document is completed. 

Thematic Priority 

This report relates to the following Strategic Economic Plan priorities: 

• Secure investment in infrastructure where it will do most to support growth.

• Facilitate and proactively support growth amongst existing firms.

Freedom of Information  

The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme. 

Recommendations 

The Infrastructure Board are asked to: 

1. Comment on the Draft SCR Energy Strategy;

2. Agree the next steps as set out in Section 2.3 and request that a report be brought to the next
meeting of the Board with the consultation feedback and proposed changes to the Strategy in
response to the comments made.

INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD 

29TH AUGUST 2019 

DRAFT SCR ENERGY STRATEGY 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



Local Industrial Strategy and the recently adopted SCR Transport Connectivity Strategy. 
The attached Energy Strategy draft (see Annex 2) is reflective of, and aligns with, the 
emerging policy set out and being developed in these strategic documents. 

2. Proposal and justification

2.1 The development of the Energy Strategy has included: 

• Strengthening of the evidence base: Ensuring that the evidence was balanced
and covered all key areas.  This included, for example, additional work on relevant
housing evidence and stronger alignment with the SCR Transport Connectivity
Strategy.

• Clearer approach: Introducing a clear ‘thread’ through the document from the
Vision, to goals, policies and interventions.

• Stakeholder Engagement: In November 2018 a workshop was held with
approximately 50 stakeholders from around the region in addition to attendees from
BEIS, that helped inform the preparation of the Draft Energy Strategy.  Further
individual discussions on specific issues with specialists such as the local
Universities, the South Yorkshire Hydrogen Network (SYH2 Network).

• Consistency with the SEP and LIS: Working closely with the SCR policy teams in
their development of the SEP and LIS to ensure that the evidence base for energy
is complete and up-to-date; highlighting areas of opportunity and focussed
economic growth links.

• University of Sheffield ‘Provocation Exercise’: Further detail given in 2.2 (C).

• Carbon Targets & Future Scenarios: Further detail given in 2.2 (B).

•

2.2 A summary of the Draft SCR Energy Strategy is provided in the attached presentation (see 
Annex 1).  The Strategy is presented to the Board as an emerging ‘work in progress’ draft, 
and there are several areas of work ongoing to help inform revisions to the Strategy over 
the coming months.  These are: 

(A) Stakeholder Engagement Workshop
A workshop will be held on the 4th September 2019 with the aim to gain feedback on the 
Draft Energy Strategy on questions including whether the emphasis of the document is 
appropriate; whether the technology agnostic approach is correct; whether the level of 
ambition is sufficiently ambitious; and, what tangible targets should be tested (see below). 

(B) Carbon Targets & Future Scenarios
In July 2019, Ricardo Energy and Environment were appointed by SCR to carry out a 
piece of analysis which is split into three phases: 
Phase 1: The scope of this Phase is to produce a science-based carbon budget for South 
Yorkshire which is aligned to the UNFCC Paris Agreement target.  The SCATTER (Setting 
City Area Targets and Trajectories for Emissions Reduction) tool was specified to ensure 
that the method was the same as that followed by Sheffield City Council and could also 
account for their ‘net-zero by 2030’ target. 
Phase 2: Alongside the top-down approach of Phase 1, a bottom-up approach is being 
employed to assess the contribution of a number of ‘tangible targets’ i.e. those that can be 

Page 60



met or influenced directly/indirectly by SCR or local authority partners.  An example of this 
could be the percentage of zero emission buses operating within the region. 
These ‘tangible targets’ will be assessed as future scenarios with differing levels of 
ambition and can be described as: 

• Business as Usual (BAU): This assumes that only the bare minimum to be
achieved is to meet any legal requirements that are expected, including an
appropriate proportion of national requirements.

• Low ambition

• Medium ambition

• High ambition: This assumes all efforts are made to meet or exceed the progress
required to stay within the overarching carbon budget.

Phase 3: Each of the future scenarios will also be assessed in terms of the likely capital 
investment required to achieve the target; the expected GVA growth; and the number of 
jobs and/or total person-years of employment associated.  These metrics may be aligned 
with the more ‘inclusive growth’ focus such as the quality of jobs, to align with the 
emphasis of the refreshed SEP and LIS. 

(C) University of Sheffield ‘Provocation Exercise’
Dr Nick Taylor-Buck at the University of Sheffield has been awarded internal funding to 
carry out a ‘provocation exercise’ on the draft SCR Energy Strategy.  PhD students will 
scrutinise and test the evidence and assumptions within the Draft SCR Energy Strategy, 
with the aim to plug any gaps identified in the evidence base or reinforce the evidence 
already given.  The work will report in early September 2019. 

(D) South Yorkshire Hydrogen (SYH2) Network
Led by Arup, the SYH2 Network brings together the key stakeholders who can drive 
forward hydrogen production, storage and use within the region as this has been found to 
be a strength of the SCR; and so will likely to form a part of the SCR Local Industrial 
Strategy.  The SYH2 Network is currently mapping the opportunities that exist to see if 
there are clusters of potential generation and consumption located near to one another, 
with a view to creating a hydrogen map for South Yorkshire by early-November. 

2.3 Next steps 
It is envisaged that the next key milestones are: 

• 28th August: Receive output from Phase 1 of the Carbon Target & Future Scenarios
commission

• 4th September: Hold stakeholder workshop

• 24th October: report to Infrastructure Board of stakeholder feedback, Provocation
Exercise results, and proposals for potential improvements to the Strategy as a
result.

• November: Receive output from Phase 2 of the Carbon Target & Future Scenarios
commission, and potential initial reporting of the Draft Strategy to the LEP Board /
MCA.

• December: Outputs from Phase 3 of the Carbon Target & Future Scenarios work.

• January–March 2020:  finalisation and endorsement of SCR Energy Strategy.

•

3. Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1 Alternative draft visions and strategic priorities have been tested both internally and with 
stakeholders and will be tested again during the Stakeholder Engagement Workshop on 4th 
September 2019, as part of consulting on the emerging Draft SCR Energy Strategy. 

4. Implications

4.1 Financial 
This work is supported by £40k from BEIS with a further £30k allocated from SCR funds.  It 
is anticipated that this budget will be sufficient to complete all the work required.  Further 
support from BEIS was also secured to employ a full-time Senior Programme Manager to 

Page 61



lead on Energy and Sustainability activity and to deliver the SCR Energy Strategy.  The 
post is hosted by SCR and works alongside district lead officers across the SCR area as 
well as regionally through the North East, Yorkshire and Humber Energy Hub. 

4.2 Legal 
A Memorandum of Understanding has been agreed with BEIS related to their funding 
contribution. 

4.3 Risk Management 
A risk assessment has been undertaken for the project which is continually monitored. 

4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion 
None arising from this report.  The SCR Energy Strategy will help to address fuel poverty 
and the health and wellbeing of the local populations and, therefore, will contribute to 
improving social inclusion. 

5. Communication

5.1 Proactive communications will be delivered across a range of channels, including digital,
social and traditional media, once the Energy Strategy is in a position to be made public. 

6. Appendices/Annexes

Appendix 1 – Summary Presentation of the Draft SCR Energy Strategy 
Appendix 2 – Emerging Draft SCR Energy Strategy 

REPORT AUTHOR Karl Sample 
POST Senior Programme Manager (Energy & Sustainability) 

Director responsible Mark Lynam, 
Email Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Telephone 0114 220 3445 

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ. 

Other sources and references: N/A 

Page 62

mailto:Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


Clean Growth & Our Low Carbon Future

SCR Infrastructure Board
29 August 2019

Appendix 1

P
age 63



Energy Strategy 
Overview

SCR Energy 
Programme

Background & Context

Vision

Goals & Policies

Targets

Links to SEP

Links to LIS

P
age 64



Energy Strategy 
Background & Context Legislating for a 80% 

reduction in GHGs by 
2050

A Clean Growth Grand 
Challenge was included in 
the UK Industrial Strategy 
leading to the Clean 
Growth Strategy. 

An evidence-based report 
highlighting the benefits of 
keeping global warming to 1.5oC 
rather than 2.0oC.Legislating for a 100% 

reduction in GHGs by 
2050

P
age 65



For Sheffield City Region to be recognised as the 

“Green Heart of Great Britain” 
with:

A clean, efficient and resilient energy system, which 
supports a healthier environment for people to live, work 
and visit, and which drives our transition to a low carbon 

economy.

Energy Strategy 
Draft Vision

. 

P
age 66



Energy Strategy 
Key Principles

Coal Gas Renewables

Transition from high carbon to low 
carbon electricity supply.

Transition from fossil fuel heating to 
electric/hydrogen/heat network. 

Transition from high demand to low 
and flexible demand.

Transition from centralised to 
decentralised energy system.

P
age 67



Energy Strategy 
Goals & Policies

Promote Industrial Cluster 
Schemes

Business Support for 
Energy Efficiency

Divestment from 
Fossil Fuels

Clean Growth in 
Businesses

Drive clean growth in our 
local businesses

Promote investment in low 

carbon energy generation, 

distribution and storage

Improve the energy 

efficiency and sustainability 

of our neighbourhoods and 

built environment

Accelerate the shift towards 

an ultra-low emission 

transport system

P
age 68



Energy Strategy 
Goals & Policies

Drive Investment in Heat 
Networks

Improve Energy Resilience

Utilise Existing Infrastructure

Train and Upskill the 
Energy Workforce

Drive clean growth in our 
local businesses

Promote investment in low 

carbon energy generation, 

distribution and storage

Improve the energy 

efficiency and sustainability 

of our neighbourhoods and 

built environment

Accelerate the shift towards 

an ultra-low emission 

transport system

P
age 69



Energy Strategy 
Goals & Policies

Improve the Standard 
of New Build Dwellings Public Sector Leading by 

Example

Enable Community Energy Schemes

Improve Efficiency of 
Existing Dwellings

Drive clean growth in our 
local businesses

Promote investment in low 

carbon energy generation, 

distribution and storage

Improve the energy 

efficiency and sustainability 

of our neighbourhoods and 

built environment

Accelerate the shift towards 

an ultra-low emission 

transport system

P
age 70



Energy Strategy 
Goals & Policies

Support the SCR Transport 
Strategy

Accelerate the Uptake 
of ULEVs

Deliver a Clean Transport 
Network

Improve Air Quality 
and Eliminate AQMAs

Drive clean growth in our 
local businesses

Promote investment in low 

carbon energy generation, 

distribution and storage

Improve the energy 

efficiency and sustainability 

of our neighbourhoods and 

built environment

Accelerate the shift towards 

an ultra-low emission 

transport system

P
age 71



Energy Strategy 
Targets

TBC – Ricardo Energy & Environment have been commissioned to carry out the analysis.

Regional Carbon Budget – late-August 2019
Bottom-up Tangible Targets – mid-Nov 2019

Economics/Jobs/Productivity – early-Dec 2019

P
age 72



Energy Strategy 
Links to Strategic Economic Plan
‘The move to cleaner economic growth – through low carbon technologies and the efficient use of resources – is one of the 

greatest industrial opportunities of our time.’ *

* UK Government (2016) - ‘Industrial Strategy: Building a Britain Fit for the Future’

Energy Resilience Business Support

• Most LEPs or Local Authorities 
have a business energy / 
resource efficiency fund.

• This reduces their energy bills 
and directly affects their 
profitability.

SME Efficiency Fund (or similar)

No assistance provided by LEP/LA

Not considered

• In purple, locations of 
inward/further 
investment not taken 
forward due to 
energy constraints.

• Local low carbon 
supply alongside grid 
improvements could 
help to resolve the 
issues faced.

P
age 73



Energy Strategy 
Links to Local Industrial Strategy

Health & Wellbeing Mission Clean Growth Mission

Hydrogen from 
Electrolysis

Minewater 
Energy

Nuclear Research

• Better indoor and outdoor air quality leading to 
reduced respiratory and cardiovascular disease.

• Cold and damp homes affect both physical and 
mental health.

• Green space linked to reduced anxiety and improved 
mental health.

• The costs to the NHS and social care of air pollution 
is predicted to cost £18.6bn by 2035.

P
age 74



Energy Strategy 
Timeline

Dec 2017

PHASE 1 COMPLETE
Energy Baselining

PHASE 2 COMPLETE
Technology Appraisal

POST-PHASE 3
SCR Strategy Writing

POST-PHASE 3
Revised Draft Strategy

POST-PHASE 3
Strategy Finalisation 

and Publication

PHASE 3 COMPLETE
Report Delivered

POST-PHASE 3
Feedback Phase

POST-PHASE 3
LEP/MCA Board

Jan 2018

Dec 2018 Jul-Sep 2019 Nov 2019

Jan-Jun 2019 Oct-Nov 2019 Jan - March 2020

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

SHEFFIELD 
CITY REGION  
DRAFT ENERGY STRATEGY: Clean 
Growth & Our Low Carbon Future 

 

 

The Green Heart of Great Britain 
 

Page 77



 

CONTENTS  
 

 

 

 

FOREWORD I 

  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY II 

  

SCR ENERGY STRATEGY   

1.0 Int roduct ion  1 

2.0 Our  Vis ion and Goals  3 

3.0 Our Evidence  6 

4.0 Our  Po l ic ies  19 

5.0 In tervent ions  26 

6.0 Implement ing  the St rategy  29 
  

 

 

Page 78



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain 
 

I 

FOREWORD 
 

To insert text. 

 

Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE MP 

James Muir – Chair of the Sheffield City Region LEP 

 

Page 79



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 II 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

OUR VISION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Sheffield City Region (SCR) Energy Strategy sets 

out the energy priorities for our City Region up to 2040 in 

support of the refreshed Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) 

and Local Industrial Strategy (LIS).  It sets out tangible 

targets and strategic direction to give confidence to 

businesses looking to invest in low carbon energy 

generation, energy infrastructure, and energy efficiency 

within our City Region.  Doing so will help create jobs, 

secure new investment, and grow our economy.  It will 

also seek to address social deprivation, improve health 

and well-being, and tackle the causes of anthropogenic 

climate change. 

There are many energy challenges across our City 

Region that need to be addressed including:  

 energy resilience, reliance on fossil fuels and the 

need to import electricity from outside our City 

Region; 

 the number of our households living in fuel poverty; 

and 

 the poor air quality that blights many areas affecting 

health and worsening respiratory problems. 
 

Our Vision will be achieved by meeting the following 

Goals:  

1. Drive clean growth in our local businesses 

2. Promote investment in low carbon energy 

generation, distribution and storage. 

3. Improve the energy efficiency and sustainability of 

our neighbourhoods and built environment 

4. Accelerate the transition to ultra-low emission 

vehicles (ULEVs) and transport systems 

Energy Resilience and Reliance on Fossil Fuels 

In 2015, 1.4TWh of electricity (18%) was imported from 

outside of our City Region meaning that we are reliant on 

other generators from around the UK.  The electricity 

generated within our City Region is primarily from using 

natural gas as the fuel, and whilst this is a cleaner fuel 

than coal, the transition towards a greater proportion of 

low carbon electricity generation needs to happen with 

greater haste, if this Vision is to be achieved. 

 

 

 

 

 

Our City Region is in a strong position to develop and 

implement solutions that will place clean growth and 

energy efficiency at the heart of our high-value 

manufacturing industry. There is an opportunity to build 

on our local supply chains and strengths in logistics to 

become forerunners in this quickly accelerating market.  

The energy intensive sectors within our City Region 

present a significant opportunity for transformational 

energy projects and innovative technologies, which will 

deliver increased productivity and significant cost savings 

that benefit the bottom-line of businesses. 

 

The successes of the Sheffield district heat network 

places Sheffield City Region in a strong position 

nationally to lead the way in developing a City Regional 

portfolio of low carbon district heat networks that deliver 

significant local benefit, including alleviating fuel poverty, 

improving air quality, reducing energy costs and 

supporting job creation. 

 

Fuel Poverty 

It is estimated that over 93,000 households – particularly 

the elderly and less affluent – are experiencing fuel 

poverty, living in cold and damp housing conditions which 

are detrimental to their health and wellbeing, and quality 

of life.  There is an opportunity to target these vulnerable 

households and provide support to improve the energy 

efficiency of their homes and help bring them out of fuel 

poverty and reduce excess winter deaths. 

 

Poor Air Quality 

In terms of poor air quality, there are twenty-eight Air 

Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) identified within our 

City Region; these are primarily caused by road traffic 

which produces nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate 

matter (PM) emissions, as well as domestic boilers which 

produce NOx emissions.  By accelerating the transition 

towards ULEVs and moving away from fossil fuel heating 

within our dwellings, our air quality will improve which will 

have a positive effect on the health of all residents. 

  

For Sheffield City Region to be recognised as the ‘The Green Heart of Great Britain’ with: 
 

A clean, efficient and resilient energy system, which supports a healthier environment for people to live, work 

and visit, and which drives our transition to a low carbon economy. 

Page 80



Page 81



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 VIII 

OVERVIEW OF POLICIES 

 

G
O

A
L 

1
 -

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

    

Clean Growth in 

Businesses 

Promote Industrial 

Cluster Schemes 

Business Support for 

Energy Efficiency 

Divestment from Fossil 

Fuels 

Encourage and support 

businesses to grow and 

prosper from the low 

carbon energy sector. 

Reduce the 

environmental impact of 

industrial clusters and 

driving inward 

investment. 

Supporting our 

businesses to become 

more energy efficient, 

reduce cost and increase 

competitiveness. 

Work with organisations 

with the aim of total 

divestment from fossil 

fuels within their 

portfolios. 

G
O

A
L 

2
 –

 In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 &
 S

ki
lls

 

    

Utilise Current 

Infrastructure 

Improve Energy 

Resilience 

Drive Investment in 

Heat Networks 

Training and Upskilling 

the Energy Workforce  

Make better use of our 

infrastructure for energy 

efficiency, low carbon 

energy generation, or 

sustainability. 

Enable the addition of 

further generation 

capacity, storage and 

balancing technology to 

support the national grid. 

Move towards 4th and 5th 

Generation heat 

networks with more 

varied low carbon heat 

sources. 

Giving people the skills to 

design, install and 

maintain our future 

energy systems. 

G
O

A
L 

3
 –

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 B

u
ild

in
gs

 

    

Enable Community 

Energy Schemes 

Improve Efficiency of 

Existing Dwellings 

Public Sector Leading 

by Example 

Improve the Standard 

of New Build Dwellings 

Work closely with 

community groups to 

develop and support 

community schemes. 

Help the most vulnerable 

in our society reduce the 

impact of energy costs by 

improving their homes. 

Reduce the impact that 

the public sector has on 

carbon emissions within 

our City Region. 

Move towards all new-

build dwellings being of 

zero carbon standard 

with EV charging points 

and smart technology. 

G
O

A
L 

4
 -

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

    

Support the SCR 

Transport Strategy 

Improve Air Quality and 

Eliminate AQMAs 

Accelerate the Uptake 

of ULEVs 

Deliver a Clean 

Transport Network 

Ensure that the low 

carbon elements of the 

Transport and Energy 

Strategies are aligned 

and delivered jointly.   

Completely eliminate Air 

Quality Management 

Areas in our City Region 

and meet all legal 

requirements. 

Tackle poor air quality by 

transitioning to ultra-low 

emission vehicles. 

Work with partners to 

ensure our City Region 

has a zero-carbon 

transport network. 

 

Page 82



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain 

 

 IX 

OVERVIEW OF TARGETS – All TBC FOLLOWING 

COMPLETION OF TARGETS COMMISSION 

 

The refreshed Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) is aiming 

for an increase in GVA of £Xbn by 20XX. Combined with 

the overall emissions target that has been set by SCR 

(XXXX by 2040) this means that our City Region is 

seeking to increase our GVA to £Xm per MtCO2 by 2040. 

 

Currently our City Region imports around 1.4TWh of 

electricity per year from other regions.  A key policy of this 

Energy Strategy is to become a net contributor to the 

national electricity network and ensure that the supply of 

our City Region is as robust, resilient and low carbon as 

possible for all residents. 

 

The ambitious targets and policies given in this Energy 

Strategy will help to drive job creation.  Nationally, over 

50,000 new jobs are estimated to be established in the 

low carbon sector over the next 15 years; however, only 

400 are expected within our City Region without greater 

ambition and investment.  Our strategy therefore is to aim 

beyond this expectation and instead create XXXX jobs in 

this high-growth sector. 

 

Activity in local communities will also be required.  The 

number of community energy projects within our City 

Region is far lower than other areas of the UK and 

communities will be key in bringing forward schemes that 

will increase the speed of decarbonisation and allow 

residents to invest in the new infrastructure. 

 

In our City Region in 2015/16 there were 940 excess 

winter deaths, many of which could have been prevented 

by having better insulated dwellings.  It is a key target of 

this Energy Strategy to reduce the number of excess 

winter deaths of the most vulnerable in our society. 

 

The public sector in our City Region must lead by 

example and the Sheffield City Region LEP and MCA will 

pledge to reduce operating emissions in our assets 

portfolio by XX% by 2030, and advocate for all buildings 

to become net zero carbon by 20XX.  All local authority 

and other public sector partners will be given the 

opportunity to commit to this goal. 

 

The number of electric vehicles (EVs) has increased 60x 

in the last seven years and is set to continue due to the 

Government’s commitment to ban the sale of fossil fuel 

cars by 2040.  This means that the infrastructure within 

our City Region to support EVs and other ULEVs must 

grow from the current 1 charging point per 150 EVs to 1-

in-10 including charging points in every neighbourhood. 

 

Poor air quality has been proven to be a direct cause of 

health issues, particularly by worsening respiratory 

diseases.  Eliminating Air Quality Management Areas 

(AQMAs) and meeting legal obligations is therefore 

essential for the well-being of the residents of our City 

Region and the basis of helping everyone become more 

active, fit and healthy. 

XX% 
increase in GVA per MtCO2 by 2040 

 

Exporter 
of electricity into the national grid 

XXXX jobs 
created in our City Region’s low 

carbon economy 

Increasing the number of community 

energy schemes in our City Region to 

X per million residents 
 

Reducing 
excess winter deaths of the elderly 

and vulnerable 

 

XX% 
reduction in public sector emissions 

 
Maintain at least a  

1-in-10 ratio 
of EV charging points to EVs. 

 

Eliminate AQMAs and 

meet all legal air quality 

requirements as soon as possible 

Page 83



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 X 

WHAT WILL THE IMPACT BE? 

 

Residents, workers and visitors in the Sheffield City 

Region will: 

 Be able to enjoy the outdoors both in rural and urban 

areas without worrying about air pollution worsening 

asthma and other respiratory conditions. 

 Be able to live in sufficiently warm homes, where fuel 

bills are affordable and their health and wellbeing is 

not adversely affected by being in fuel poverty. 

 Be safe in the knowledge that a new build house is 

built to excellent energy efficiency standards with low 

carbon heating to keep running costs to a minimum. 

 Have ample opportunities to train and upskill in order 

to work in the growing low carbon energy sector. 

 Know that the public sector across our City Region 

leads by example with regards to promoting energy 

efficiency, sustainability and tackling the Climate 

Emergency. 

 Recognise that local Universities are at the forefront 

of low carbon research and development, helping 

drive innovation in the economy. 

 See that local businesses are innovating to reduce 

their carbon emissions; thereby reducing their costs, 

improving their productivity, and creating new jobs 

and business growth opportunities. 

 Have safe and plentiful cycle and walking routes 

which enable them to move around the City Region 

without the need for a car. 

 Be able to charge their ultra-low emission vehicles at 

multiple convenient places around the City Region, 

to remove ‘range anxiety’ and encourage their use. 

Page 84



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain 

 

 

 1 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 PURPOSE OF OUR ENERGY STRATEGY 

 

The aim of this document is to provide a coherent, 

evidenced strategy to enable our City Region to become 

a leader in clean growth, low carbon and affordable 

energy which will take advantage of the significant 

economic growth in this area by attracting in new 

companies and through associated local supply chains.  

This Energy Strategy also highlights what will need to be 

targeted in terms of investment and innovation in our City 

Region and how to accelerate the transition from fossil 

fuels to renewable and low carbon energy generation 

alongside reduced energy use. 

 

The publication of the Industrial Strategy saw the UK 

Government request that all Local Enterprise 

Partnerships (LEPs), produce Local Industrial 

Strategies (LIS) to translate the ambitions and activities 

of this national strategy into local economies and 

activities. 

 

Additionally, the Department for Business, Energy, and 

Industrial Strategy (BEIS) are delivering a Local Energy 

Programme, which intends to enhance the levels of 

support that LEPs will receive when delivering energy 

projects.  The first phase of this programme provided 

funding to all LEPs in England to support them in 

developing an energy strategy, with an emphasis on 

identifying investable projects which enhance energy 

opportunities across a region. 

 

The SCR LEP and MCA are targeting the development 

of a single, bold SCR strategy; a long-term, strategic 

policy framework which bolsters local economic growth 

and establishes our City Region as ‘The Green Heart 

of Great Britain’.  This Energy Strategy will help inform 

both the LIS and the refreshed Strategic Economic Plan 

(SEP), detailing actions required to meet local and 

national ambitions. 

 

This Energy Strategy sets out the energy targets, goals, 

policies and interventions for our City Region up to 2040 

and has been developed in collaboration with The Carbon 

Trust, Local Authority partners, and stakeholders from 

across our City Region.  Delivery of the Energy Strategy 

will involve central government, local authorities, public 

and private organisations and businesses, community 

groups and Universities, as well as the SCR LEP and 

MCA.  

 

 
Figure X: Marr Wind Farm in Doncaster (Watermarked) 

1.2 THE SCOPE OF THE ENERGY STRATEGY 

 

This Energy Strategy sets out a series of goals, policies 

and interventions, some of which the MCA will lead, some 

of which the MCA will contribute to, and some of which 

the MCA will seek to influence.  It is therefore important 

that this Strategy is not seen as an end-point – it is much 

more of a starting point to develop the energy network 

that needs to be supported to meet the economic and 

decarbonisation aspirations of our City Region.  This will 

require working together with our local, regional and 

national partners in a co-ordinated way to seek 

opportunities to strengthen linkages and to jointly invest 

in the future of energy in our City Region. 

 

1.3 NATIONAL CONTEXT 

 

The UK’s Industrial Strategy was published in 2018 and 

sets out the Government’s plan to create an economy that 

boosts productivity and earning power throughout the UK.  

It sets Four Grand Challenges where Britain can lead the 

global technological revolution: 

 Artificial Intelligence (AI) and Data Economy: 

putting the UK at the forefront of AI and data 

revolution. 

 Clean Growth: maximising advantages for UK 

industry from the global shift to clean growth. 

 Future of Mobility: being a world lead in shaping the 

future of mobility. 

 Ageing Society: harnessing the power of innovation 

to help meet needs of an ageing society. 

 

These challenges each have strong links with the energy 

and low carbon sectors and with economic growth.  The 

UK Industrial Strategy highlights several ways in which 

we will need to consider low carbon energy and energy 

efficiency to build an economy that works for everyone.  

These include: 

 Upgrading energy infrastructure to enable growth 

Page 85



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 2 

and support new technologies; 

 Delivering affordable energy and keeping energy 

costs down for businesses; 

 Delivering clean growth and securing the economic 

benefits of the transition to a low carbon economy;  

 Investing in science, research and innovation, 

including energy storage and grid technologies; and 

 Supporting businesses to start and grow. 

The Industrial Strategy recognises that LEPs will play an 

important part in supporting local growth, and 

emphasises the importance of collaboration between 

LEPs, alongside the need for policy flexibility at the 

regional level.  In terms of funding, Government 

recognises that LEPs require financial support to be 

effective.  Additional financial resources will be made 

available to LEPs that demonstrate ambitious levels of 

reform. 

 

The Clean Growth Strategy (CGS) published in 2017 

provides an ambitious blueprint for Britain’s low carbon 

future, outlining how investment in green energy goes 

together with economic growth and placing clean growth 

at the centre of the Industrial Strategy.  Core to the CGS 

are:  

 Accelerating Clean Growth: developing world 

leading ‘Green Finance’ capabilities. 

 Improving Business and Industry Efficiency: 

improving energy productivity and commercial 

building standards; delivering industrial energy 

efficiency; investing in industrial innovation. 

 Improving our Homes; upgrading energy efficiency; 

strengthening building standards; rolling out heat 

networks; phasing out of high carbon heating. 

 Accelerating the Shift to Low Carbon Transport: 

supporting the uptake of ULEVs; developing an EV 

charging network; shifting freight from road to rail; 

and battery technology. 

 Delivering Clean, Smart, Flexible Power: phasing-

out of coal, developing new ways of grid balancing 

through storage and demand response. 

 Enhancing the Benefits and Value of Our Natural 

Resources: a new network of forests; zero avoidable 

waste by 2050. 

 Leading in the Public Sector: setting a voluntary 

public sector carbon reduction target; funding energy 

efficiency improvements in England. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 86



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 3 

2.0 OUR VISION AND GOALS 

2.1 OUR ENERGY VISION 

Our Vision is: 

 

 

 

 

2.2 OUR ENERGY GOALS 

As stated in Section 1.3, supporting this Vision are four 

goals: 

1. Drive clean growth in our local businesses 

2. Promote investment in low carbon energy 

generation, distribution and storage. 

3. Improve the energy efficiency and sustainability of 

our neighbourhoods and built environment 

4. Accelerate the transition to ultra-low emission 

vehicles (ULEVs) and transport systems 

All of these will be led by the principle that our energy 

supply in whatever form is undergoing a transition from 

high carbon to low carbon (see Figure X below).  The 

focus of this Strategy is to promote and seek to accelerate 

this transition to renewables and to also reducing energy 

demand where possible; but recognising that natural gas 

may have a role to play at least in the short-to-medium 

term.

Figure X: The SCR energy transition 

                                                
1 REF – SoS for BEIS (find Hansard) 
2 REF 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOAL 1: Drive Clean Growth in our Local Businesses 

The low carbon economy is projected to grow 11% per 

year until 2030; four times faster than the growth of the 

UK economy as whole1.  Providing the platform for clean 

growth amongst business will help to transform our City 

Region’s economy, and in doing so help to further drive 

both productivity and skills. 

 

Research from BEIS2 indicates that SMEs across the UK 

could save £0.5 billion a year through the implementation 

of energy efficiency measures.  Despite this, there 

remains a large proportion of the 52,000 SMEs in our City 

Region who are not actively improving their energy 

efficiency.  Action is therefore required to improve levels 

of SME engagement, helping to reduce overall business 

costs, improve productivity, enhance competitiveness 

and contribute towards the development greener 

business practices. 

 

The SCR Growth Hub helps businesses across our City 

Region access a variety of support, including advice on 

innovation, exports, accessing finance and training.  The 

goal will be to expand this role, build on its success and 

identify ways in which local businesses can be supported 

to reduce their energy and other resource costs, helping 

to improve productivity and growth.  To incentivise long-

term, sustainable success the use of loan-to-grant 

mechanisms will also serve to draw additional businesses 

to our City Region in turn attracting greater inward 

investment. 

Coal Natural Gas Renewables

For Sheffield City Region to be recognised as the ‘The Green Heart of Great Britain’ with: 
 

A clean, efficient and resilient energy system, which supports a healthier environment for people to live, work 

and visit, and which drives our transition to a low carbon economy. 

 

 

Page 87



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 4 

GOAL 2: Promote Investment in Low Carbon Energy 

Generation, Distribution and Storage 

Smart technologies are increasingly important in 

alleviating strain on the electricity network and meeting 

the demands of new patterns and types of energy 

consumption.  They do this through increasing flexibility 

by shifting some of the demand to off-peak times, 

matching demand with generation, and digitising energy.  

This will reduce the extent to which large scale 

replacement and upgrading works will need to be carried 

out on the electricity network thus keeping costs down for 

consumers.  

 
Figure 1.1 — Solar PV Farm in Bolsover 

 

Given the worldwide movement towards decentralised 

energy generation and use (typically through more 

localised wind and solar generation, batteries and smart 

technologies), this is a good time for SCR to develop 

forward-facing, proactive investment to create a ‘smart 

grid’ for our City Region alongside the development of 

skills, apprenticeships and jobs that this will create.   

 

The natural geography of our City Region and the 

expertise of our businesses, community enterprises and 

world-class universities provide a strong basis for us all 

to do much more; to generate the additional heat and 

power needed for the future from renewable sources.  As 

part of this, it is essential that all new energy generation 

opportunities are capitalised on, removing the barriers to 

scheme development and identifying new forms of 

investment needed. 

 

Our City Region is already leading the way on heat 

networks with Sheffield being home to one of the most 

developed heat networks in operation in the UK.  Given 

the existing industrial activity in our City Region, there is 

also significant potential to capture waste heat and feed 

this into local heat networks to distribute to nearby towns 

and cities.  Efforts now need to be focussed on 

introducing suitable investment delivery mechanisms 

which will allow other projects of this type to succeed. 

 

Building on the history of our City Region’s mining 

heritage, the use of geothermal energy from abandoned 

mines could be a key form of low carbon energy 

production in the future.  These legacy subterranean 

structures can also be used to store thermal energy (from 

waste heat or purposefully generated solar heat) 

generated during summer months for use during the 

winter.  It is essential that these assets are exploited such 

that our City Region becomes a front runner in developing 

former coalmines for use in energy schemes and 

thereafter benefitting from a variety of first-mover 

advantages in the market. 

 

 
Figure X: Mine entry points across Barnsley (shown as ×) MAY NEED TO INSERT A BROADER SY/SCR MAP 

Page 88



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 5 

GOAL 3: Improve the Energy Efficiency and Sustainability 

of our Neighbourhoods and Built Environment 

Better energy efficiency can significantly reduce fuel bills 

for residents within our City Region, protecting them 

against rising energy prices.  Energy efficiency brings the 

most significant benefits to houses that are often 

occupied by those who are ‘fuel poor’.  It is of crucial 

importance to reduce the proportion of fuel poor 

households across our City Region since there are 

proven connections between fuel poverty and health 

issues.  To aid this, a strategic approach will be taken to 

tackling fuel poverty and improving inefficient dwellings, 

maximising the benefits of the scope of the Mayoral 

Combined Authority and the financial efficiencies that 

arise as a result. 

 

 
 

It is important to focus on both the need to retrofit homes 

and build quality new homes which meet the expectations 

of reduced running costs of the occupants and take 

account of the movement away from fossil fuels for 

heating3.  New build dwellings will be addressed by 

raising the standards required of new housing schemes 

beyond building regulations across our City Region.  The 

public sector will also lead by example by improving its 

building stock and embedding ethical and low carbon 

criteria into procurement and investment decision 

processes. 

 

Community energy projects are a perfect way to 

accelerate the deployment of distributed energy, putting 

individuals at the heart of energy systems.  These 

schemes can deliver an array of benefits resulting in 

improved resilience, education, and empowerment for 

local communities; a great example of this in action is 

Energise Barnsley, the largest local authority and 

community energy solar PV and battery storage project in 

the UK4. 

 

But overall, research indicates that our City Region has a 

relatively low number of community energy projects per 

resident compared to the South West or London. By 

working with local authorities, the wider public and the 

voluntary sector, the development of more community 

energy schemes will be encouraged.

                                                
3 The UK Government have pledged to introduce a future homes standard, mandating the end of fossil-fuel heating systems in all new 

houses from 2025.  (HC (13 March 2019) Vol 656, Col 351.  Available at: https://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2019-03-

13/debates/5B9C772E-1769-437A-A4F0-06DEAC55D676/SpringStatement (Accessed: 02 June 2019)) 
4 REF 
5 SCR Transport Strategy (2019) 

GOAL 4: Accelerate the Transition to Ultra-Low Emission 

Vehicles and Transport Systems 

Complementing the SCR Transport Strategy5, the Energy 

Strategy sets an ambition to deliver an innovative, cleaner 

public transport networks and kick-start further ambitious 

projects for active travel.  Projects of this type will lower 

carbon emissions and have a significant positive impact 

on both air quality and health. 

 

With 85% of our City Region’s residents commuting to 

work within SCR, decarbonisation of transport can make 

a significant contribution to our overall emission reduction 

ambition.  Across the UK, the low carbon transport sector 

has made reasonable progress in decarbonisation, 

particularly in the electrification of railways, buses and 

cars and it will be important for our City Region to avoid 

falling behind.  The outcomes of the Tram-Train pilot 

project will be drawn upon to shape future strategies 

focused on electrifying rail networks.  High Speed Rail 2 

(HS2) presents major economic and regeneration 

opportunities; both businesses and the workforce need to 

be ready to realise the low carbon and economic benefits 

associated with HS2. 

 

Where journeys cannot be made via Active Travel or 

using public transport it needs to be ensured that there is 

a coherent city-wide network of refuelling infrastructure, 

helping to increase the uptake of electric and other ultra-

low emission vehicles (ULEVs).  Companies within our 

City Region are already at the forefront of hydrogen 

refuelling this provides an opportunity to build on this 

knowledge and widen access to hydrogen as a transport 

fuel source. 

 

 
Figure X: Hydrogen refuelling in Rotherham 

IMAGE TO BE INSERTED? 

Page 89

https://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2019-03-13/debates/5B9C772E-1769-437A-A4F0-06DEAC55D676/SpringStatement
https://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2019-03-13/debates/5B9C772E-1769-437A-A4F0-06DEAC55D676/SpringStatement


Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 6 

3.0 OUR EVIDENCE 

3.1 INTRODUCTION 

This Energy Strategy is shaped by a robust evidence 

base most of which was gathered and analysed 

independently by The Carbon Trust and which seeks to 

cut through the many uncertainties we face and provide 

an objective analysis.  It seeks to focus discussions and 

identify the interventions or actions that have the 

maximum impact across our City Region.  As such, the 

strategy provides a sound understanding of the external 

factors affecting our City Region and all of the strengths, 

weaknesses, opportunities and threats associated with 

the energy economy. 

3.2. STRENGTHS OF OUR CITY REGION 

In order to maximise the local economic benefit 

associated with the energy transition, areas of 

competitive advantage have been identified that can be 

utilised, including those brought by existing businesses, 

educational institutions and communities, and those 

affected by the physical locality and infrastructure.  The 

Sheffield City Region has a unique opportunity to 

stimulate innovative investment opportunities in the low 

carbon energy sector to develop and decarbonise its 

economy further. 

 

The SCR Independent Economic Review6 in 2013 noted 

that SCR’s “technology, manufacturing and engineering 

offer is as good as anywhere in Western Europe with a 

world-leading cluster of research institutes and innovative 

businesses centred around the Advanced Manufacturing 

Park”.  While the Science and Innovation Audit7 carried 

out by the Department for Business, Energy and 

Industrial Strategy in 2016 identified energy as a key 

sector that provides the potential for economic growth 

based on its science base.  

 

 
 

Figure X: Selected energy assets within Sheffield City Region (blue = wind farm, yellow = power station, red = EfW plant).  Areas where investment has been 

curtailed due to energy issues highlighted in purple.  THIS WILL BE REPLACED ONCE MAPPING CAPABILITY IS AVAILABLE

                                                
6 Sheffield City Region – Independent Economic Review (2013) 
7 REF 

Page 90



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 7 

BARNSLEY 
 

Energise Barnsley is the largest local authority and 

community energy rooftop solar PV and battery storage 

project in the UK (Figure X).  Barnsley also has a 13-

turbine wind farm at Royd Moor which has a power rating 

of 6.5MW. 

 

 
Figure X: Energise Barnsley 

DONCASTER 
 

Doncaster has a significant wind resource capitalised by 

two onshore windfarms: an 8.2MW farm at Marr and a 

further 8.2MW farm at Hampole, each consisting of 4 

turbines.  In July 2019, Doncaster Sheffield Airport 

announced plans for a £2m, 1.7 MW solar PV farm to 

offset 220 tonnes of CO2 from the site. 

 

The Doncaster Infrastructure Strategy and Green 

Infrastructure Strategy outline the council’s plans to install 

a total of 1MW of solar panels on 6,000 council houses, 

and the generation of the Low Carbon & Energy 

Development Corridor extending from Thorne and 

Hatfield Moors to Thorpe Marsh Nature Reserve the Low 

Carbon and Energy Development Corridor with the aim of 

attracting a range of green businesses and renewable 

technologies within a high-quality living and working 

environment by 2035. 

 

ROTHERHAM 
 

Rotherham has significant renewable energy generation 

capacity including a 20.4MW onshore wind farm at Penny 

Hill Lane and Blackburn Meadows Power Station: a 

29MWe and 25MWth capacity biomass-CHP power 

station operated by E.On. 

 

The Advanced Manufacturing Innovation District (AMID) 

is in Rotherham and is a network of world-leading 

research and innovation centres working with advanced 

manufacturing companies of any size around the globe.  

This includes the Advanced Manufacturing Research 

Centre (AMRC) the winner of the 2007 Queen's 

Anniversary Prize for Higher and Further Education, and 

Factory 2050. 

 

 
Figure X: Nuclear AMRC 

 

Rotherham is also home of the UK’s largest Hydrogen 

Mini Grid System – a 225kW wind turbine coupled directly 

to an electrolyser, 200kg of hydrogen storage, a hydrogen 

dispensing unit and a 30kW fuel cell system capable of 

providing backup power generation for nearby buildings. 

 

SHEFFIELD 

 

Sheffield is known as being a ‘green city’ due to having 

the highest number of trees per capita in Europe due 

largely to it being the only city in the UK with a national 

park within its boundary. 

 

The University of Sheffield is a world-class University 

ranked 12th overall in the UK, and part of the prestigious 

Russell Group.  Boasting no fewer than eight energy 

related research centres as part of the Research Institute 

for Energy: one of the UK’s largest energy research 

institutes with over 120 academics and 250 PhD students 

undertaking energy research and innovation. 

 

The Translational Energy Research Centre (TERC) is a 

state-of-the-art testing facility for low carbon energy 

technologies which ensures that Sheffield and the UK 

retains research and development leadership in clean 

 
 

The Energise Barnsley scheme was set up to 

deliver community-owned renewable energy, 

energy efficiency and energy supply projects. 

 

Residents of Barnsley were able to invest from 

£100 with an expected rate of return of 5%. 

 
 

The Nuclear Advanced Manufacturing Research 

Centre (AMRC) based in Rotherham has developed 

its position at the heart of the UK’s civil nuclear 

manufacturing industry. 

 

They have worked with businesses, including 

SMEs, to help them to become more competitive 

and help others solve their manufacturing problems 

across the energy sector.  Nuclear AMRC have 

also worked with the supply chain to support their 

progress towards the ‘Fit 4 Nuclear’ (F4N) 

benchmark.  The F4N programme helps companies 

measure their current operations against the 

standards required to supply the UK’s new 

generation of nuclear power stations and take the 

necessary steps to enter this £40bn market. 

Page 91



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 8 

energy.  The UK Government awarded the TERC a grant 

of £7m in June 2017 to further research into carbon 

capture, use and storage (CCUS) with a further £10m 

awarded via ERDF funding. 

 

 
Figure X: Urban Flows Observatory 

 

A further research institute is the Urban Flows 

Observatory which will aid the understanding of the city 

at a building-level ensuring that the best information is 

available to inform policy (Figure X). 

 

The energy from waste plant in Sheffield and the district 

heating network which extends under much of the city 

centre shows that the city also has practical skills to offer 

in the transition to a low carbon future (Figure X). 

 

 

Figure X: Sheffield District Heat Network 

WIDER SHEFFIELD CITY REGION 

Beyond South Yorkshire there are a number of high 

profile energy assets including: Cottam 2GW Coal Fired 

Power Station (which will cease to generate from the 30th 

September 2019 after 51yrs of operation), West Burton A 

2GW Coal Fired Power Station (which is likely to close in 

September 2021), and West Burton B 1.3GW CCGT 

Power Station.  Also, a large solar PV farm in Oxcroft 

generates approximately 4,000 MWh of electricity per 

year – enough energy to power around 1,200 homes 

 

3.3 JOBS AND PRODUCTIVITY 

Our economy is not dominated by a single sector or type 

of industry.  Instead there is a diverse base which 

includes advanced manufacturing, high performance 

materials, transport and logistics as well as significant 

business services; all benefitting from close links to two 

world class Universities and an enterprising public sector. 

Between 2005 and 2015 the population across our City 

Region grew by 6% and is now home to over 1.8 million 

people with 68,000 businesses providing 847,000 jobs.  

Over the same period annual Gross Value Added (GVA) 

in our City Region increased by 29% to over £33bn, 

making up 30% of the Yorkshire and Humber economy 

and 2% of the UK’s total economy.  With world-class 

specialisms in advanced manufacturing, our City Region 

is at the forefront of innovation and a major driver of 

economic growth.  Figure 3.2 shows that our City Region 

is performing well overall, with GVA growth ahead of the 

targets in our first SEP, although there is much further to 

go if we are to meet the ambition set out in the refreshed 

Strategic Economic Plan.

 
 

The Urban Flows Observatory seeks to understand 

how the physical (energy and material resources) 

metabolism of cities can be effectively measured, 

understood and utilised.  To do this, mobile and 

fixed sensors will be deployed around Sheffield to 

improve our understanding of the city. 

 

The aim is to provide the methodologies and tools 

to manage and analyse urban data streams.  From 

this, a robust evidence base will be developed to 

facilitate local and national decision making, 

supporting the creation of zero carbon, healthy, 

happy cities. 

 
The Veolia managed Sheffield District Energy 

Network is the largest and most successful District 

Heat Network in the UK since its opening in 1988.  

The District Energy Network now provides over 140 

buildings with low carbon energy from un-recyclable 

waste that would otherwise be sent to landfill. 

 

Pipework currently extends 45km under Sheffield 

saving over 20,000 tonnes of carbon emissions and 

providing heat to Universities, hospitals, public and 

private businesses, and dwellings. 

Page 92



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 9 

 

Figure X: Growth in GVA and reduction in energy consumption between 2005 and 2015

GVA per person remains low relative to our peers and the 

wider UK, and our City Region is ranked 36th out of 39 

LEP areas in England for GVA per person8.   

Productivity has several drivers including quality of 

infrastructure, business growth and innovation 

expenditure.  Furthermore, too many of our citizens are 

distant from the labour market, not in employment or 

training, are experiencing poor physical or mental health, 

and have low or no skills to help them get better jobs. 

Addressing productivity, therefore, will require intelligent 

investments in high-quality and innovative sectors like the 

low carbon energy sector, which is highly productive, and 

can contribute to our City Region’s productivity challenge.  

The UK’s low carbon and renewable energy (LCRE) 

economy grew by 6.8% to £44.5 billion in 2017.  Once the 

indirect activity is also accounted for, the total turnover 

from the LCRE economy was £79.6 billion in 2017.  This 

directly and indirectly supported almost 400,000 full-time 

equivalent jobs and is set to continue to grow by 11% per 

year by 20309. 

In 2011, the Independent Economic Review for SCR 

noted that the low carbon sector had only 9,500 

employees, much lower than other northern LEP 

economies.  This shows the potential for growth in this 

sector within our City Region. 

Sheffield City Region has the potential to realise this 

growth building on our current energy assets and further 

diversifying towards a greener more energy efficient 

                                                
8 SEP Evidence Base 2019 

economy. 

 

3.4 ENERGY CONSUMPTION 

In 2015, the Sheffield City Region consumed a total of 

40,527 GWh of energy, representing a 25% decrease on 

2005 levels.  This means that a 42% decrease in energy 

consumed per unit of GVA has been observed.  Such 

statistics point to an economy that has become 

increasingly energy efficient, although this is largely 

based on wider structural changes in the national 

economy as it moved to less intensive industries, rather 

than wholescale energy efficiency. 

9 REF 

25,764

33,213

53,932

40,527

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016

En
er

gy
 C

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 (
G

W
h

)

G
V

A
 (

£
m

ill
io

n
)

GVA (£million) Energy Consumption (GWh)

Gains in…efficiency are a key ‘engine 

of economic growth’, contributing 25% 

of the increases to gross domestic 

product (GDP) in the UK over the 

period of 1971–2013.  This confirms an 

under-recognised role for energy in 

enabling economic growth. 
 

Sakai et al. (2018) – “Thermodynamic Efficiency Gains and 

their Role as a Key ‘Engine of Economic Growth’” 

(https://dx.doi.org/10.3390/en12010110). 

Page 93

https://dx.doi.org/10.3390/en12010110


Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 10 

Demand-side response (DSR) is a proven way in which 

to reduce the effect of electricity consumption on the 

network by shifting usage from periods of high 

consumption (peaks) to periods of low consumption 

(troughs).  Typically, the consumer receives a financial 

incentive to reduce usage on non-essential items when 

there is high demand or reduced supply, or a financial 

incentive can even be given to use power when there is 

an excess of supply e.g. a windy day.  This provides the 

suppliers with a more stable load, and consumers with the 

opportunity to reduce their bills.  Currently, DSR is 

underutilised within our City Region but is becoming 

increasingly more accessible with the advent of smarter 

technologies. 

 

Most of the energy consumed by our City Region is from 

fossil fuel sources, with the greatest proportion of energy 

consumed being natural gas and petroleum products.  

Consumption of coal and manufactured fuels is minimal 

and continually decreasing, particularly at a domestic-

level.  Bioenergy and wastes is an equally small 

proportion of overall energy consumption, but 

consumption of this fuel type has seen a 31% increase 

since 2005. 

 

Energy consumption is evenly shared between transport, 

the domestic sector, and industry and commerce (Figure 

3.4).  The transport sector consumes almost 100% 

petroleum products; the domestic sector consumes 

predominantly gas (76%) and electricity (20%); industry 

& commercial sector has a more varied energy mix 

comprising gas (40%), electricity (37%), petroleum 

products (11%), bioenergy (6%) and coal (4%) (Figure 

3.5). 

 

There are over 6,000 significant public-sector land and 

buildings assets in the SCR10.  Many of these buildings 

are not energy efficient and by exploring opportunities, 

and using local expertise to address these inefficiencies, 

this could present a significant cost saving for the public 

purse. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.

 
Figure 3.4 — Split of overall energy consumption in 2015 by end user 

 

 

3.5 ELECTRICITY GENERATION 

In 2015, our City Region generated 6.2TWh of electricity 

and consumed 7.6TWh.  This means that our City Region 

is a net importer of electricity with a 1.4TWh deficit – 

equivalent to the amount of energy required to make 

every cup of tea consumed in the UK over the course of 

a year.  This deficit is likely to get larger in the coming 

years as our two coal-fired power stations at Cotham and 

West Burton are due to be retired within the next two 

                                                
10 SCR Estates Transformation Strategy (2019) 

years in line with the national ambition to move away from 

coal. 

 

Almost 80% of the generated electricity (4.8TWh) is from 

burning natural gas (Figure 3.9).  Whilst this is an 

expected stepping stone on the way to zero carbon 

electricity it does make our City Region particularly reliant 

on fossil fuels. 

 

For our City Region to become a net contributor to the 

national grid by 2040, the deployment of approximately 

1GW of power generating capacity is required.  However, 

according to all future energy scenarios developed by the 

National Grid11, the electricity demand of SCR will have 

doubled by 2040.  Therefore, maintaining a net positive 

contribution to the grid (accounting for the 

decommissioning of coal generation capacity in 2025) 

would require an additional 2-3 GW of capacity unless 

demand can be reduced at a significant scale.  
 

 

11 REF 

34%

33%

33%

Transport

Industry & Commercial

Domestic

Page 94



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 11 

  

Figure 3.5 — Split of overall energy consumption in 2015 by fuel type 

across ‘Transport’, ‘Industry & Commercial’ and ‘Domestic’ 

 
Figure 3.9 – Electricity generation in Sheffield City Region by source in 2015.  (CCGT = Closed Cycle Gas Turbine) 

 

Gas now accounts for 77% of electricity generation within 

our City Region and will likely continue to have a role to 

play in the energy mix as we transition towards a zero-

carbon future.  This Strategy seeks to continue the energy 

transition, this time from gas to renewable energy twinned 

with a significant energy demand reduction.  Energy 

efficiency measures, onshore wind, biomass, etc. 

potentially have a bigger role to play in the future subject 

to planning, investment in technology and delivery 

challenges.  Our City Region has some significant natural 

resources.  For example, our City Region’s significant 

wind resource is currently underexploited, and the 

increase in installation of onshore wind turbines would 

help our City Region to become a true leader in low 

carbon energy. 

 

Page 95



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 12 

 
Figure X: The transition of electricity generation in the UK.  The low carbon proportion of electricity generation increased to a record 50.1% in 2017 in 

contrast to coal whose share decreased to 6.7%.12 

 

3.6 HEAT GENERATION 

Heat is generated for a variety of reasons and across 

different sectors.  Within the domestic sector, heat energy 

is used for hot water supply and space heating, within 

industry and commerce for process heating and drying 

processes amongst many other applications.  Heat is also 

a common waste product across many industries.  The 

easiest and thus most common way to produce heat is 

through burning combustible matter, typically fossil fuels, 

which is highly carbon intensive.  Efforts to decarbonise 

heating have been made, although these are often not as 

known or understood by the public meaning uptake of 

technologies such as heat pumps has been low. 

 

The Renewable Heat Incentive (RHI) is a scheme that 

has been developed to encourage domestic and 

commercial users to generate heat from renewable 

sources, these may include: solar thermal systems, heat 

pumps (air source, ground source or water source), and 

biomass/biogas boilers.  Users of the scheme benefit 

from payments for every unit of heat energy they 

generate and use themselves. 

 

Using data from the RHI, we can see that domestic and 

non-domestic sectors had installed 24MW and 99MW of 

renewable heating capacity respectively by 2017.  

Combined, this new capacity accounts for only 3% of the 

total capacity of installed measures taking advantage of 

the RHI scheme.  The breakdown of technologies for 

domestic and non-domestic users can be seen below in 

Figure X.  Typically, biomass systems are preferred by 

non-domestic users, covering 97% of all non-domestic 

capacity.  For domestic users, the capacity spread for 

each technology is more balanced, biomass is still the 

most preferred (43%), but heat pumps (specifically air 

source, 39%) also provide a substantial share of capacity. 

 

The idea of using hydrogen gas to replace natural gas for 

domestic heating is gaining traction in recent years.  The 

UK government and the wider industry have several 

large-scale innovation projects investigating the potential 

including H2113, and Hy4Heat14.  Hydrogen used to make 

up 50-60% of the UK’s ‘town’ gas supply in the 20th 

century, but now only 0.1% of hydrogen is allowed within 

the gas network.  Research is currently ongoing at Keele 

University15 to understand the impact of increasing the 

percentage of hydrogen in the gas network to 20%. 

 

  

                                                
12 Digest of UK Energy Statistics (DUKES) 2018 

(https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/736148/DUKES_2018.pdf; Accessed 

23/04/19) 
13 H21 (https://www.northerngasnetworks.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/H21-Report-Interactive-PDF-July-2016.compressed.pdf) 
14 Hy4Heat (https://www.hy4heat.info/) 
15 HyDeploy (https://hydeploy.co.uk/) 

Coal Natural Gas Renewables

Page 96

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/736148/DUKES_2018.pdf
https://www.northerngasnetworks.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/H21-Report-Interactive-PDF-July-2016.compressed.pdf
https://www.hy4heat.info/
https://hydeploy.co.uk/


Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 13 

 
Figure 3.10 – Installed UK capacity of various technologies benefitting from the RHI (date – to be updated prior to publication) 

 

3.7 PEOPLE, HOUSING AND FUEL POVERTY 

Our population is forecast to grow by 9.3% between 2016 

and 204116.  At the same time, predicted trends suggest 

that the average household size will reduce because of 

the increase in single person households.  These trends 

put more pressure on our existing housing stock and we 

need more new houses to support economic and 

population growth as well as to meet the demands of an 

ageing population. 

 

Overall, our City Region includes a significant proportion 

of older homes which are difficult to heat, and some, 

particularly in the private rented sector, are poorly 

maintained.  In contrast, the majority of social housing 

and housing association stock is largely in a good 

condition due to significant public investment.  However, 

these need ongoing maintenance and further investment 

can help to reduce the costs of heating for residents 

meaning they have more disposable income.  

                                                
16 REF 

 
Figure X – Lower Super Output Areas within SCR that are considered 

‘areas of need’ for domestic energy efficiency measures. 

 

A wide range of people are vulnerable to the cold, often 

due to a medical condition, a disability or other personal 

circumstances, such as a low income.  The focus will be 

on the 81,000 households in fuel poverty, especially as 

this contributes to around 1,000 people a year dying early 

due to excessive winter deaths in our City Region.  Fitting 

existing homes with energy efficiency measures is proven 

to be the most effective way to tackle fuel poverty and 

raise living standards, by reducing energy use and 

helping keep energy prices affordable.  

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

Air source heat pump Ground source heat
pump

Biomass systems Solar thermal

In
st

al
le

d
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

(M
W

)

Domestic Non-Domestic

Page 97



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 14 

Fuel poverty needs to be tackled, as does the number of 

people living in poorly heated homes.  This means more 

affordable heating as well as improving the efficiency of 

housing, helping to improve health and address the 

excessive winter deaths suffered in some communities.  

Through infrastructure investment, business support and 

other targeted interventions to key industries, small-

medium sized enterprises and homeowners, this Strategy 

provides the framework for stimulating energy innovation, 

helping to drive economic growth and address social 

inequality. 

 

Several new housing schemes are being piloted in the 

SCR to test new housing product innovations such as 

Passivhaus, modular build, and other higher energy 

efficient building standards, that lower the energy use of 

new homes and ensure they are fit for the future.  These 

include the Citu development at Little Kelham in Sheffield 

and a ‘modern methods of construction’ (MMC) pilot in 

Rotherham – both supported by the SCR Housing Fund.  

The challenge is to learn from these pilots to enable the 

roll-out of these innovations at greater scale, which would 

present additional opportunities for up-skilling, local job 

creation, and local supply chains.  In a similar way, 

community heating networks can also be developed on 

new housing areas or introduced to existing residential 

neighbourhoods.  For example, Sheffield City Council 

operates 135 community energy networks covering 

almost 6,000 council homes.  They can enable residents 

to manage their energy use and costs much more 

effectively with high tech controls and smart meters as 

well as modern, efficient boilers or heating systems. 

 
Figure X: EPC Lodgements in SCR (2005-2016)17 

 

  

                                                
17 Note: The data have not been adjusted to account for multiple EPCs of the same dwelling, yet, this provides an indication as to the 

likely EPC split within each local authority area. 

0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% 50.0% 60.0% 70.0% 80.0% 90.0% 100.0%

England & Wales

SCR

Sheffield

Rotherham

NE Derbyshire

Doncaster

Derbyshire Dales

Chesterfield

Bolsover

Bassetlaw

Barnsley

Energy Performance Certificate Lodgements in SCR (2005-2016)

A B C D EFG

“Ultra-high energy efficiency standards, 

installed alongside an air source heat 

pump, represent a 1.1-4.3% uplift on 

build costs relative to current 

standards, depending on the type of 

building.” 

Committee on Climate Change (2019) – “UK Housing: Fit 

for the future?”  

(https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2019/02/UK-housing-Fit-for-the-future-

CCC-2019.pdf) 

Page 98

https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/UK-housing-Fit-for-the-future-CCC-2019.pdf
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/UK-housing-Fit-for-the-future-CCC-2019.pdf
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/UK-housing-Fit-for-the-future-CCC-2019.pdf


Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 15 

3.8 EMISSIONS 

In May 2019, the Committee on Climate Change 

recommended that the “The UK should legislate as soon 

as possible to reach net-zero greenhouse gas emissions 

by 2050.  The target can be legislated as a 100% 

reduction in greenhouse gases (GHGs) from 1990 and 

should cover all sectors of the economy, including 

international aviation and shipping.”18 

 

On a local level, total emissions for our City Region stood 

at more than 11,000 ktCO2e in 2015; equivalent in weight 

to over 850,000 double decker buses.  This is despite 

falling by nearly a third between 2005 and 2015.   

 

Emissions from the industrial and commercial sector are 

a significant part of our City Region’s overall emissions at 

just under 4,000 ktCO2 per annum.  This is largely due to 

our strong manufacturing base, which emits around 2,400 

ktCO2 per annum (60% of the sector’s emissions); 5x as 

much as any other sector; shown in Figure 3.6 below. 

 
Figure X: The emissions in Sheffield City Region by sector between 

2005 and 2015 

Similarly, emissions from transport make up a similar 

proportion of our City Region’s overall emissions as 

those from industry.  The greatest emitters are petrol 

and diesel cars (29% and 27% respectively), which are 

predominantly privately-owned passenger vehicles.  

HGVs and diesel/petrol LGVs are likely commercial 

vehicles and these combined represent 38% of all 

transport emissions.  Emissions from public transport 

contribute a total of 5% of emissions (buses and rail 

combined). 

 

Electric vehicles currently have a minimal impact on the 

overall transport emissions in our City Region, yet there 

is a global trend towards the uptake of electric vehicles.  

Advances in battery and other storage technologies, 

further reductions in costs and improved efficiencies will 

                                                
18 CCC – Net-Zero: The UK’s Contribution to Stopping Global Warming (https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Net-Zero-

The-UKs-contribution-to-stopping-global-warming.pdf), May 2019 
19 Add web link, downloaded on 23rd April 2019 

mean that electrification is increasingly viable.  Plans to 

make electric vehicle charge points more widely 

available and convenient for motorists were put forward 

by Government in October 2016 with all new diesel and 

petrol cars banned by 2040.  In the UK the number of 

newly registered ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEVs) 

rose by 250% in just two years, and there has been a 

steady increase in ULEVs in SCR since 2014.   

 

Currently, our City Region has only one charging point 

per 150 EVs; this ratio needs to change substantially to 

support the growth in this sector.  The group ‘Transport 

& Environment’, which is funded by the European 

Commission, recommend that the ratio should be 

around 10 EVs to every 1 public charging point.  

 

According to Zap-Map Statistics19 there are 21,855 

charging points in the UK, an increase from 

approximately 1,500 in 2011.  But only 5% of these 

charging points are in the Yorkshire & the Humber 

region.  With our City Region having a high reliance on 

private cars for commuting, an increasing proportion of 

diesel vehicles, and the slow adoption of electric 

charging points, a step-change in charging point 

availability needs to be seen alongside and supportive 

policy decisions to address poor air quality and tailpipe 

carbon emissions.  The University of Sheffield, 

alongside seven other northern universities, are part of 

the DecarboN8 network which focusses on surface 

transport emissions and are leading the ‘Digitisation, 

Demand and Infrastructure’ theme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Em
is

si
o

n
s 

(k
tC

O
2
e)

Domestic Industry & Commercial Transport

By 2050, we expect the shift to low-

carbon options like electrification to cut 

the annual costs of UK transport by 

around £5 billion. 
 

Committee on Climate Charge (CCC) (2019) – “Net-Zero: 

The UK’s Contribution to Stopping Climate Change” 

(https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2019/05/Net-Zero-The-UKs-contribution-

to-stopping-global-warming.pdf). 

Page 99

https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Net-Zero-The-UKs-contribution-to-stopping-global-warming.pdf
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Net-Zero-The-UKs-contribution-to-stopping-global-warming.pdf
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Net-Zero-The-UKs-contribution-to-stopping-global-warming.pdf
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Net-Zero-The-UKs-contribution-to-stopping-global-warming.pdf
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Net-Zero-The-UKs-contribution-to-stopping-global-warming.pdf


Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 16 

 
A 

B 

C 

D 

E 

 

F 

G 

 

H 

I 

J 

K 

L 

Agriculture, forestry and fishing 

Mining and quarrying 

Manufacturing 

Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply 

Water supply; sewerage, waste management and 

remediation activities 

Construction 

Wholesale and retail trade; repair of motor vehicles 

and motorcycles 

Transportation and storage 

Accommodation and food service activities 

Information and communication 

Financial and insurance activities 

Real estate activities 

 

M 

N 

O 

 

P 

Q 

R 

S 

T 

 

 

U 

Professional, scientific and technical activities 

Administrative and support service activities 

Public administration and defence; compulsory 

social security 

Education 

Human health and social work activities 

Arts, entertainment and recreation 

Other service activities 

Activities of households as employers; 

undifferentiated goods-and services-producing 

activities of households for own use 

Activities of extraterritorial organisations and 

bodies 

Figure 3.6 – Scope 1 and 2 emissions produced by main industry and commercial sectors in 2015 based on employment figures 
20

  

                                                
20 Department for Transport (https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/all-vehicles-veh01#ultra-low-emissions-vehicles; 

Dataset VEH0132; accessed 23/04/19) 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

A BDE C F GHI J K L MN OPQ RSTU

G
V

A
 (

£
m

)

C
ar

b
o

n
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

(k
tC

O
2)

Sector Labels

Emissions and GVA per Sector (2015)

Emissions GVA

Page 100

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/all-vehicles-veh01#ultra-low-emissions-vehicles


Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 17 

3.9 AIR QUALITY 

Air quality is directly linked to emissions levels.  Our City 

Region faces significant air quality issues with 28 Air 

Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) across SCR 

(Figure 3.10).  Poor air quality is linked to a variety of 

health concerns ranging from short term illness to serious 

diseases and premature death.  In South Yorkshire an 

average of 4.7% of all adult deaths can be attributed to 

PM2.5 air pollution21 (Barnsley 4.5%, Rotherham 4.8%, 

Doncaster 5.0%, Sheffield 4.6%).  The impact on health 

and life expectancy is more significant for some groups of 

people than others and there is an identified link with 

deprivation.  Poor air quality also has an adverse impact 

on the environment. 

 

Across Sheffield alone there are 51 locations where the 

European Union’s annual average limit value for NO2 

(40µg/m3) has been exceeded in one or more of the 

three-year periods (2010-2012), and a 30% reduction in 

NO2 emissions would be needed in order to comply with 

the limit value. Analysis indicates that road transport is 

the single most significant contributor to Sheffield’s NO2 

emissions at these locations.  

 

Sheffield City Council and Rotherham Metropolitan 

Borough Council are undertaking a Clean Air Zone 

Feasibility Study, to ensure compliance with legal 

thresholds in the shortest possible time.  To address the 

particular challenges in Sheffield, similarly to other 

significant cities across England, a Charging Clean Air 

Zone is proposed which would target the most polluting 

vehicles that do not meet required emissions standards. 

Current proposals that would see improvements to 

buses, coaches, taxis, HGVs and LGVs will be 

consulted upon in early 2019.  This is an important 

challenge for Sheffield City Region and by meeting the 

requirements the health of people who live and work in 

our towns and cities will improve. 

 

Mitigating the impact of the motorway network on air 

quality represents a significant challenge for our City 

Region and success will be dependent on collaboration 

with Highways England and national Government. 

 

 
Figure 3.10 — Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) in South Yorkshire 

 

Poor air quality has recently been estimated to account 

for up to 500 premature deaths per year in Sheffield, 

with health costs of around £160 million per year. 

Individuals who are particularly sensitive and exposed 

to the most elevated levels of pollution have an 

estimated reduction in life expectancy of as much as 

nine years. 

 

In comparison, the Department of Health and Social 

Care reports that the impact of reducing fine particles 

has a bigger impact on life expectancy than eliminating 

passive smoking or traffic accidents, as shown in the 

table below. 

 

 

 

 Reduction in fine 

particles PM2.5 

Elimination of road 

traffic accidents 

Elimination of 

passive smoking 

Expected gain in life 
expectancy 7-8 months 1-3 months 2-3 months 

                                                
21 PM2.5 is particulate matter of 2.5µm in diameter 

Page 101



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 18 

3.10 CARBON SEQUESTRATION AND STORAGE 

Sheffield has a unique selling point as the only city in the 

UK with a National Park within its boundaries.  Coupled 

with the city’s 180 woodlands, 650 green spaces and its 

ratio of seven trees per resident22, Sheffield is often noted 

as the greenest city in the UK. 

The number of trees and plants, and the maintenance of 

peatland within our City Region is incredibly important in 

the fight against anthropogenic climate change.  Trees 

remove and store carbon from the atmosphere which, 

alongside man-made methods such as carbon capture, 

use and storage (CCUS), reduce the net amount of 

carbon being emitted. 

In May 2019, the ‘Net Zero’ report by the Committee on 

Climate Change recommended that across the UK, 

between 30,000 and 50,000 hectares of land should be 

given over to afforestation – the planting of new forest – 

each year until 2050.  Proportionally, by land area, this 

would require between 4,350 and 7,250 hectares per year 

within our City Region, equating to between 4.4 and 18.1 

million trees planted per year, depending upon density of 

plantation, in addition to the millions of trees already 

existing within City Region. 

 

By 2050, this would create a carbon sink of between 2.4 

and 4.0 MtCO2e per year thus ‘netting off’ up to one-third 

of the Region’s emissions (at 2015 levels).  This is in 

addition to the air pollution removal and natural flood 

management benefits.  Yet, planting trees at this speed 

and scale would be unprecedented in the UK and 

initiatives like the Mayor’s pledge to plant a million trees 

need wider support and uptake. 

 

The Northern Forest is a Government backed initiative led 

by the Woodland Trust and the Community Forest Trust 

to link the east and west coasts of England with a forest 

of over 50 million trees.  The Northern Forest would 

envelope South Yorkshire and help to increase the 

proportion of woodland in the North of England from 7.6% 

- which is far below both the UK (13%) and EU (44%) 

averages. 

                                                
22 Ref – The Sheffield City Council Woodland Strategy 2018 

23 LULUCF = Land use, land use change and forestry. 
24 Natural England – England’s Peatlands: Carbon Storage and Greenhouse Gases (2017) (Available at: 

http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/30021) (Accessed: 02 June 2019) 

 
Figure X: The total carbon emissions for the LULUCF23 sector 

 

Natural England estimate24 that English peatland 

contains carbon equivalent to 2.14 billion tonnes of CO2 

if it were released to atmosphere which can occur when 

the peat is eroded or mis-treated.  Management of 

peatland therefore is a crucial aspect of the emissions 

challenge to ensure that this remains locked away.  

Restoration of peatland can deliver further carbon 

sequestration. 

 

Thorne and Hatfield Moors are the two largest lowland 

raised mires in Britain, covering over 2,800 hectares and 

are designated sites of special scientific interest.  The 

Moors are located to the north and east of Doncaster 

 

Both afforestation and restoration of peatland have 

positive knock-on effects for the local areas.  These 

include natural flood management since trees slow the 

flow of the run-off and increase infiltration, and some peat 

moss can absorb as much as 20-times its dry weight in 

water. 

Page 102

http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/30021


Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 19 

3.11 Key Challenges 

 

 

 

1. Far fewer people are employed in the low carbon sector in our City 

Region than other parts of the North of England. 

2. Forecasts currently suggest the City Region will capture only a minimal 

amount of potential economic growth and new jobs in the low carbon 

sector. 

3. Our City Region is a net importer of electricity with a deficit of 1.4TWh 

per annum. 

4. Natural gas (a fossil fuel) is currently used to produce almost 80% of the 

electricity generated in our City Region. 

5. Yorkshire and Humberside have only 5% of the UK’s electric vehicle 

charging points and only one hydrogen fuelling point. 

6. There are almost 1,000 Excess Winter Deaths each year in our City 

Region and 81,000 households are in fuel poverty. 

7. Over 25% of houses in our City Region have an energy rating in the 

lowest bands (E, F or G). 

8. Poor air quality blights parts of our City Region with 28 designated Air 

Quality Management Areas (AQMAs). 

9. Manufacturing is the largest source of carbon emissions in our City 

Region, followed by transport and housing. 

10. Our City Region has significantly fewer community energy schemes 

compared to other regions. 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 20 

4.0 OUR POLICIES 
 

Each of our energy goals is underpinned by four specific policies and each aligns to the Mayor’s commitments 

and/or those made in the refreshed Strategic Economic Plan25, providing a framework to guide all decision-

making processes and investment strategies related to our energy system up to 2040.  The policies have been 

developed through analysis of the evidence detailed in Section 3 and refined based on stakeholder input.  

 

 

                                                
25 REF – SEP 2019 

Page 104



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 21 

Energy Strategy Goal Mayoral Commitments SCR Plans & Strategies Energy Strategy Policies 

1. Drive clean growth in our 
local businesses 

 Make sure that we create good 
quality jobs with decent pay and 
opportunities for progression. 

 TO BE ADDED AT A LATER DATE 
TO REFLECT THE REFRESHED 
STRATEGIC ECONOMIC PLAN 
AND THE LOCAL INDUSTRIAL 
STRATEGY. 

A. Facilitate clean growth in our local 
businesses and increase the number of 
jobs in the low carbon energy sector. 

 

B. Promote cluster schemes to deliver energy 
and cost savings, and drive innovation in 
key growth areas. 

 

C. Provide support to businesses to help 
them: reduce the costs involved in initial 
connection to the energy grid and invest in 
energy efficiency measures and low carbon 
heat and power. 

 

D. Discuss routes to divestment from fossil 
fuels, in favour of more ethical investments, 
with public and private sector organisations 
in our City Region. 

2. Promote investment in 
low carbon energy 
generation, distribution 
and storage 

 Produce energy surpluses.  TO BE ADDED AT A LATER DATE 
TO REFLECT THE REFRESHED 
STRATEGIC ECONOMIC PLAN 
AND THE LOCAL INDUSTRIAL 
STRATEGY. 

E. Utilise and/or repurpose our City Region’s 
current infrastructure and natural resources 
to decarbonise the energy supply including 
the use of energy from minewater. 

 

F. Improve the energy resilience of our City 
Region through the increased use of smart 
grids and storage and working with network 
providers to strategically plan future 
improvements. 

 

G. Drive investment in both new and existing 
heat networks to increase the overall 
capacity and bring new sources of low 
carbon and/or waste heat onto the network. 

 

H. Invest in the training and upskilling of those 
who will be designing, installing and 
maintaining our future energy systems. 

P
age 105



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 22 

3. Improve the efficiency 
and sustainability of our 
neighbourhoods and 
built environment 

 Provide additional support for the 
elderly to insulate their homes and 
reduce their energy bills. 

 

 Boost community energy schemes 
that can reduce our region’s 
environmental impact. 

 

 Ensure greater use of community 
energy is reflected in our approach to 
housing and spatial planning. 

 

 Create a Mayor’s Community Energy 
Fund to support energy efficiency 
measures, community energy and 
micro-generation schemes. 

 

 Invest in new technologies to 
manage energy consumption. 

 

 Ensure that 1 million trees are 
planted in SCR. 

 TO BE ADDED AT A LATER DATE 

TO REFLECT THE REFRESHED 

STRATEGIC ECONOMIC PLAN 

AND THE LOCAL INDUSTRIAL 

STRATEGY. 

I. Enable communities to develop local 
energy schemes and provide opportunities 
for residents of the SCR to invest in our 
City Region’s energy infrastructure. 

 

J. Support widespread energy efficiency 
improvements to existing dwellings across 
our City Region to reduce the number of 
excess winter deaths. 

 

K. The public sector leading by example by 
improving energy efficiency of their stock, 
supporting innovation, and building low 
carbon and sustainable principles into 
procurement and investment policies. 

 

L. Ensure that new housing within our City 
Region is of a high quality in terms of 
energy use and efficiency. P

age 106



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 23 

4. Accelerate the shift 
towards ultra-low 
emission transport 
systems 

 Introduce an Air Quality Action Plan 
for the whole city region. 

 

 Explore every option to reduce 
emissions from vehicles and 
pressure the Highways Agency to 
tackle poor air quality caused by 
motorways in the region. 

 

 Fight for increased investment in 
electric and hydrogen buses to 
reduce pollution in urban areas. 

 

 Encourage the roll-out of electric 
vehicle charging points in every 
neighbourhood of our City Region. 

 

 Supporting the extension of the 
Supertram network via the 
connection into Rotherham and 
consider similar schemes elsewhere. 

 TO BE ADDED AT A LATER DATE 
TO REFLECT THE REFRESHED 
STRATEGIC ECONOMIC PLAN 
AND THE LOCAL INDUSTRIAL 
STRATEGY. 

M. Ensuring that the low carbon elements of 
the Transport Strategy are aligned and 
delivered jointly. 

 

N. Improve air quality across our City Region 
to meet legal thresholds especially in 
designated AQMAs and CAZs. 

 

O. Accelerate the deployment of ultra-low 
emission vehicles, autonomous vehicles 
and related infrastructure as well improve 
the performance and efficiency of other 
vehicle fleets operating in SCR. 

 

P. Lead the way towards a low carbon 
transport network, including a zero-
carbon public transport network including 
increased Active Travel. 

P
age 107



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 24 

4.1 GOAL 1: Drive Clean Growth in our Local Businesses – check for repetition from A-P 

 

Policy A: 

Facilitate clean growth in our local businesses and 

increase the number of jobs in the low carbon energy 

sector. 

 

Providing the platform for clean growth amongst local 

businesses will help to transform our City Region’s 

economy, and in doing so help to further drive both 

productivity and skills improvements. 

 

Achieving and maintaining levels of clean growth amongst 

businesses and industries will present an array of 

opportunities for our City Region, due to our sector 

specialisms in digital technologies, advanced 

manufacturing, engineering and materials production 

where the greatest reductions in emissions can be realised. 

Policy B:  

Promote cluster schemes to deliver energy and cost 

savings, and drive innovation in key growth areas. 

 

The implementation of industrial clustering schemes will 

work to improve collective understanding of the actions and 

measures required to improve energy efficiency levels 

amongst the region’s most energy intensive industries.   

 

The benefits associated with this approach include: 

improvements to both firm and region visibility; the diffusion 

of knowledge and good practice amongst key industries; 

and the sharing of common resources. 

 

An aim of the UK Government is to create a net-zero 

industrial cluster by 2040 as part of the Industrial Strategy. 

Policy C:  

Provide support to businesses to help them: reduce the 

costs involved in initial connection to the energy grid and 

invest in energy efficiency measures and low carbon heat 

and power. 

 

Research from BEIS26 indicates that SMEs across the UK 

could save £0.5 billion a year through the implementation 

of energy efficiency measures. Despite this, there remains 

a large proportion of SMEs who are not actively engaged 

in taking action to reduce their energy usage.  Action is 

therefore required to improve levels of SME engagement in 

resource efficiency, in the knowledge that the installation of 

such measures can play a large role in reducing overall 

business costs (energy bills), improving productivity, 

enhancing competitiveness and contributing towards the 

development of an overall greener business (reducing 

carbon footprint). 

Policy D:  

Discuss routes to divestment from fossil fuels, in favour of 

more ethical investments, with public and private sector 

organisations in our City Region. 

 

The two Sheffield-based universities agreed in 2015 to 

divest from organisations “linked to explicit environmental 

damage”, and this has largely been achieved.  Yet many 

other organisations in our City Region are still funding fossil 

fuel companies through their investment portfolios 

including South Yorkshire Pensions Authority. 

 

Although this policy has no direct impact on the carbon 

emissions of our City Region it is seen as morally 

necessary to accompany the package of policies outlined 

in this Energy Strategy. 

 

  

                                                
26 REF 

Page 108



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 25 

4.2 GOAL 2: Promote Investment in Low Carbon Energy Generation, Distribution and Storage 

 

Policy E: 

Utilise and/or repurpose our City Region’s current 

infrastructure and natural resources to decarbonise the 

energy supply including the use energy from minewater. 
 

Our City Region has a long and proud history of being at 

the forefront of energy production with over 100,000 coal 

miners working in this industry at its peak.  In 2016, the UK 

became the first major industrial nation to close all deep 

coal mining; this left behind a legacy of subterranean 

infrastructure.  Now, this infrastructure is flooded with water 

warmed from geothermal heat making it ideal for heating 

nearby properties.   

 

Wind resource within our City Region is higher than many 

other onshore areas of the UK.  A number of onshore wind 

turbines have been erected over the last 20 years to take 

advantage of this, but due to national planning policy this 

practice has ground to a halt.  The  

Policy F:  
Improve the energy resilience of our City Region through 

the increased use of smart grids and storage, and working 

with network providers to strategically plan future 

improvements. 

 

Smart technologies are increasingly important in 

alleviating grid strain and meeting the demands of new 

patterns and types of energy consumption.  They can do 

this through increasing flexibility in a number of ways, 

shifting demand off-peak, matching demand with 

generation and digitising energy – such as with smart 

meters, allowing for better access to usage data and 

therefore to manage the energy system more efficiently. 

 

Given the growth in decentralised energy generation and 

use, through domestic solar PV arrays, batteries and EVs, 

this is a crucial time for the UK’s energy system.  Forward-

facing, proactive investment in creating a smart grid for 

our City Region will deliver skills, jobs and investment, 

whilst reducing potential constraints and high costs from 

grid reinforcement further down the line. 

Policy G:  

Drive investment in both new and existing heat networks 

to increase the overall capacity and bring new sources of 

low carbon and/or waste heat onto the network. 

 

Our City Region is currently leading the way on evolving 

heat networks, and Sheffield is home to one of the most 

developed networks currently in operation across the UK.  

Given the existing industrial activity in the region, there is 

also significant potential to capture waste heat from 

industry and feed this to local heat networks or distribute to 

nearby towns and cities.  In addition to new heat networks, 

there is an opportunity to further decarbonise existing 

networks through the adoption of 4th and 5th Generation 

district heating principles, including lowering operating 

temperatures. 

 

It is estimated that heat networks contribute to £0.02bn 

GVA in the North of England currently.  This could further 

contribute towards an additional £5.8bn GVA and 83,956 

jobs in the North of England by 2050, according to KPMG 

analysis of a scenario which included a mix of heat 

networks, hydrogen, natural gas and electricity for heat and 

EVs for transport. 

 

Policy H:  

Invest in the training and upskilling of those who will be 

designing, installing and maintaining our future energy 

systems. 

 

Our City Region has a workforce with the required skills for 

installation and maintenance of low carbon products and 

the momentum behind this progress has to be maintained.  

Skills investment should also be focussed on those who are 

wishing to move from traditional sectors of mining, 

manufacturing, etc. into the low carbon energy sector 

where new qualifications will allow them to take advantage 

of increasing opportunities.  This will also provide a pool of 

high-quality local workers from which our businesses can 

recruit. 

  

Page 109



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 26 

4.3 GOAL 3: Improve the Energy Efficiency and Sustainability of our Neighbourhoods and Built 

Environment 

 

Policy I: 

Enable communities to develop local energy schemes and 

provide opportunities for residents of the SCR to invest in 

our City Region’s energy infrastructure. 
 

Currently the Yorkshire and Humber region has 1.7 

community energy projects per million residents 

compared to 10.4 projects per million for the South West, 

and 4.3 across the North West.  Given the benefits that 

can be realised from community energy projects including 

increased resilience, education and empowerment for 

local communities, more focus should be given to 

developing community energy projects.  It is also 

important that local communities can invest in the energy 

infrastructure of our City Region. 

 

A Mayor’s Community Energy Fund, will be used to support 

energy efficiency measures, community energy and micro-

generation schemes.  The Fund will also prioritise 

additional support mechanisms for the elderly, focusing on 

interventions which insulate homes and reduce energy 

bills.  The Mayor has also committed to working closely with 

Community Energy England, who are based in Sheffield, to 

boost community energy schemes that can reduce our City 

Region’s environmental impact. 

Policy J:  
Support and invest in widespread energy efficiency 

improvements to existing dwellings across our City Region 

to reduce the number of excess winter deaths. 

 

As part of the English Housing Survey into stock 

condition, it was noted that in 2016, 20% of UK housing 

stock did not meet the Decent Homes Standard, which 

details that houses must: i) meet the statutory minimum 

standard for housing, ii) provide a reasonable degree of 

thermal comfort, iii) be in a reasonable state of repair, and 

iv) have reasonably modern facilities and services.  In 

Sheffield City Region, 12% of households are deemed to 

be in fuel poverty, higher than the UK-average; it is 

therefore important that there is a focus of effort towards 

reducing the proportion of fuel poor households across 

our City Region. 

 

Policy K:  

The public sector leading by example. 

 

The residents of Sheffield City Region will be looking for 

both clear guidance and leadership with regards to 

decarbonisation and clean growth.  The natural leaders are 

those with the most influence and greatest reach: The Local 

Enterprise Partnership, the Mayoral Combined Authority, 

Local Authorities, and other public bodies.   

Policy L:  

Ensure that new housing within our City Region is of a high 

quality in terms of energy use and efficiency. 

 

There is a crucial need to embed sustainability into new 

housing developments to meet upcoming regulations in 

2025 regarding the banning of gas boilers, and actively 

pursuing Industrial Strategy Grand Challenges relating to 

halving energy usage from new buildings by 2030.  These 

will present our City Region with an array of technological 

and industrial opportunities that complement transitions 

towards clean growth.   

 

Through the SCR Housing Fund, opportunities will arise for 

the SCR Mayoral Combined Authority to implement 

mitigating actions that can be targeted at new 

developments which make use of the funding provided.  
Clear sustainability credentials for new builds can create 

new business opportunities for local homebuilders, as well 

as improve the attractiveness of new.  Standards such as 

Passivhaus could be required as they aim to achieve 

thermal and occupant comfort with passive measures, 

including good levels of insulation, passive solar gain, 

internal heat sources, high levels of airtightness, and good 

indoor air quality. 

Page 110



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 27 

4.4 GOAL 4: Accelerate the Transition to Ultra-Low Emission Vehicles and Transport Systems 

 

Policy M: 

Support the Sheffield City Region Transport Strategy. 
 

This Energy Strategy sits alongside the Transport Strategy 

underneath the SCR Strategic Economic Plan; therefore, 

the Strategies will complement the work of the other.  It will 

be a key priority of the SCR Executive Team to ensure that 

the low carbon elements of the Transport Strategy are 

aligned and delivered jointly. 

Policy N:  
Improve air quality across our City Region to meet legal 

thresholds especially in designated AQMAs and CAZs. 

 

Deteriorating air quality in our City Region is a growing 

issue that threatens the quality of our outdoors, as well as 

our residents’ health and quality of life.  Analysis indicates 

that road transport is the single most significant 

contributor to harmful NO2 emissions, therefore reducing 

tail pipe pollutants has an important part to play including 

the use of Clean Air Zones (CAZs).   

 

At present, the SCR has 28 Air Quality Management 

Areas (AQMAs), where pollutants currently exceed 

European Union legal limits.  The significant air quality 

issues across the SCR also emphasise the importance of 

delivering transport networks that encourage shifts to low 

carbon transport. 

 

A move to alternative fuels could significantly reduce 

emissions from buses, HGVs and private cars.  Freight 

consolidation is another way to reduce the emissions 

associated with freight vehicle movements in areas of 

known, poor air quality. 

Policy O:  

Accelerate the deployment of ultra-low emission vehicles, 

autonomous vehicles and related infrastructure as well 

improve the performance and efficiency of other vehicle 

fleets operating in SCR. 

 

The low carbon transport sector has made reasonable 

progress in decarbonisation across the UK over the last 

decade however It is important that our City Region does 

not fall behind the national levels of progress.  Baseline 

analysis shows that transport emissions within our City 

Region have only fallen by 9% over this period; far slower 

than other sectors.  

 

The SCR Mayoral Combined Authority and South 

Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive is in a strong 

position to deliver the pace of change required through the 

devolved power given by Government and the plans in the 

SCR Transport Strategy which include a faster and more 

strategic approach to the deployment of EV charging 

points. 

Policy P:  

Lead the way towards a low carbon transport network, 

including a zero-carbon public transport network including 

increased Active Travel. 

 

Plans were put forward by Government in October 2016 

to ban all diesel and petrol cars by 2040, although 

recommendations from the Committee on Climate, 

amongst others, are to bring this forward.  In SCR there 

has been a steady increase in the number of registered 

electric vehicles, however there is going to need to be a 

significant step-change brought about from an improved 

and expanded supporting infrastructure. 

 

Our City Region is also at the forefront of hydrogen 

refuelling developments, evident through the hydrogen 

refuelling station already in place at the AMRC in 

Rotherham, which electrolyses hydrogen from water 

using wind power.  The ability to build on this knowledge 

and widen access to hydrogen as a fuel source therefore 

presents an important economic opportunity for our City 

Region. 

 

Recognising the parallels between energy, transport and 

improvements to our air quality, reduced dependency on 

the private car is seen as a key part of the solution thereby 

changing the way people travel, and encouraging more 

active travel (cycling, running and walking). 

 

Page 111



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 28 

5.0 INTERVENTIONS 
5.1 INTRODUCTION 
 

Beyond the adoption of this Strategy a range of 

projects will be developed, started, or accelerated 

depending upon their current position within the 

pipeline.  Complementary projects will form 

programmes of work which will ultimately meet the 

overall goals and targets of this Strategy.  Some of 

these projects/programmes will be led by Sheffield City 

Region (SCR), some of which SCR will contribute to 

and others which SCR will seek to influence.  It is 

therefore important that this Strategy is not seen as an 

end-point – it is a starting point from which collectively 

we can work towards a cleaner, more efficient and 

affordable energy network for our City Region. 

 

This section of the Strategy gives more information 

about the key strategic interventions that are currently 

known to SCR and how they will be brought forwards 

within the national and sub-national context.  

 

5.2 CITY REGION INTERVENTIONS 

 

Our local interventions need to build on those being 

developed nationally.  Globally, there is an increasing 

focus on energy being generated locally in a 

decentralised way rather than being reliant on large-

scale electricity generation.  This provides a number of 

opportunities within our City Region for the 

development of schemes which generate renewable 

electricity.  For heat, the national focus is in three 

areas: electrification, hydrogen, and heat networks.  

Since our City Region has a history of developing and 

running an efficient heat network this is an obvious 

area for expansion.  However, it would be foolish to 

place all eggs in one basket.  Fourth and fifth 

generation heat networks make use of low 

temperatures which then allows for the incorporation of 

electrically-driven heat pumps, either at the source 

and/or user-end.  Our City Region also has a head-

start with world-leading expertise in hydrogen 

generation technology via electrolysis.  Hydrogen 

provides two key contributions: generating hydrogen 

for both heat and transport fuel, and it can be used as 

a storage medium to help balance the national 

electricity network by generating hydrogen when there 

is a surplus of renewable electricity being generated 

rather than paying generators to not produce 

electricity. 

 

There will likely be a spatial element to any local 

interventions owing to the natural resources and 

current assets that already exist within our City Region.  

For example, the wind resource is far more plentiful in 

some areas than others making the case for onshore 

wind much more viable and cost-effective. 

 

Sheffield City Region take a principled approach to any 

direct investment and would aim to prioritise those 

opportunities where it is possible to recover the 

investment to re-invest in further decarbonisation 

schemes or energy related infrastructure. 

 

The remainder of this section provides an indication of 

some of the local interventions that could be 

implemented by public or private partners.  Each of the 

interventions are guided by our policies and support 

the commitments set out in the Strategic Economic 

Plan and those made in the Mayoral manifesto. 

 

To achieve Policy A (Clean Growth in Businesses), we 

will: 

 Support SMEs to become aware of, and apply for, 
innovation funding provided from HMG and 
elsewhere. 

 Provide an environment within our City Region that 
allows innovators to test and further develop their 
innovations. 

 Work to develop an employment pool for those 
graduating through SCR’s apprenticeship schemes 
and matching them to high-quality employers within 
the energy sector. 

 Seek to create a Centre of Excellence for Low 
Carbon Business and Research Innovation as part 
of the Global Innovation Corridor. 

 Establish our City Region as an innovation 
incubator where energy innovations can be taken 
from concept, to prototype, to trial, through to full-
scale production.  

To achieve Policy B (Cluster Schemes), we will: 

 Work with organisations to implement cluster 
schemes within hubs of local economic activity 
which deliver collective energy and financial 
savings, and drive innovation in key growth areas. 

 Seek opportunities where partnerships can be 
created between developers of energy efficient 
technologies and industrial companies willing to test 
innovative technologies on-site. 

  

Page 112



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 29 

To achieve Policy C (Business Support for Energy 

Efficiency), we will: 

 Aid SMEs to identify and implement 
energy/resource efficiency improvements. 

 Support SMEs to reduce their energy consumption, 
remove barriers to the introduction of low carbon 
technologies, switch to ‘green’ suppliers, and 
improve productivity. 

 Promote Energy Managers within organisations and 
the use of Energy Champions in our City Region.   

 Aim to create regular networking and CPD 
opportunities for energy professionals within our 
SMEs to allow skills and knowledge transfer, and 
further learning. 

 

To achieve Policy D (Divestment from Fossil Fuels), we 

will: 

 Discuss routes to divestment from fossil fuels, in 
favour of more ethical and social investments, with 
public and private sector organisations in our City 
Region. 

 

To achieve Policy E (Utilise Current Infrastructure), we 

will: 

 Work in partnership with the Coal Authority to 
identify and implement minewater energy schemes 
that can both provide and store energy for use by 
the local community via a heat network. 

 Consider ‘meanwhile uses’ of public land and 
buildings to generate further power from renewable 
sources for our City Region. 

 Consider further opportunities for onshore wind as 
part of our City Region’s renewable energy mix; 
subject to local planning, environmental constraints, 
and community engagement. 

 

To achieve Policy F (Improve Energy Resilience), we will: 

 Investigate energy storage for all Energy Intensive 
Industries (EIIs) within our City Region to lower the 
cost of electricity which would make them more 
competitive and helping to balance the load on the 
local distribution network. 

 Work with the owners and operators of the large 
electricity generators within our City Region with the 
aim of securing a low carbon supply of energy for 
the foreseeable future. 

 Seek to develop and deploy a zero-carbon smart 
microgrid within SCR; this could include working 
with Northern Powergrid as part of their Smart Grid 
Enablers project.  

 

To achieve Policy G (Drive Investment in Heat Networks), 

we will: 

 Consider the extent to which the heat networks 
throughout SCR can be extended and improved 
over the next 20-30 years, including the 
consideration of bringing new heat sources and 
sinks onto the network to allow for greater flexibility. 

 Consider large-scale thermal storage for the heat 
networks within our City Region to reduce peak 
capacity demand and maximise the number of 
connections. 

 Assess the potential benefits of linking heat 
networks throughout our City Region.  

 

To achieve Policy H (Training and Upskilling the Energy 

Workforce), we will: 

 Assist businesses and young people to develop the 
skills they need to take advantage of opportunities 
in the energy sectors. 

 Encourage those working in sectors with similar skill 
sets to re-train and/or gain additional qualifications 
such that they can also operate in the low carbon 
sector.  

To achieve Policy I (Support Community Energy 

Schemes), we will: 

 Encourage community energy schemes in which 
residents can invest and benefit with low risk.  
Schemes could include solar farms, onshore wind 
farms, low carbon heat schemes and realise 
benefits such as cash dividend, vouchers for use 
within SCR, and re-investment. 

 Work closely with Community Energy England to 
identify opportunities for community energy 
schemes within our City Region. 

 Ensuring that income from community energy 
schemes is re-invested on a local scale to broaden 
the impact of chosen interventions. 

 

To achieve Policy J (Invest in Domestic Energy 

Efficiency), we will: 

 Identify ‘priority’ dwellings/households i.e. those 
with biggest need for improvement (e.g. solid walls, 
fuel poor, elderly, etc.). 

 Use devolution funds to create a ‘Mayor’s 
Community Energy Fund’ to help priority 
households with capital costs of installing low 
carbon heating/cooling and energy efficiency 
measures. 

 

  

Page 113



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 30 

To achieve Policy K (Public Sector Leading by Example), 

we will: 

 Reduce the embodied emissions associated with 
products and construction. 

 Using procurement policy to ensure that sustainable 
materials are used where possible. 

 Build sustainable practices into policy and 
investment decisions. 

 Reduce the energy used by any building in 
operation and where possible any demand to be 
met through renewable energy.   

 Promote innovation by undertaking pilot schemes. 

To achieve Policy L (Improve the Standard of New Build 

Dwellings), we will: 

 Seek to create an off-site, modular construction 
supply chain within the SCR which focusses on 
creating quality, low-carbon housing. 

 Work with planners to strongly encourage higher 
energy efficiency standards, beyond those of Part L 
of the UK Building Regulations, towards the levels 
required for the Passivhaus standard. 

 Use the SCR Housing Investment Fund to only fund 
housing developments with high energy efficiency 
standards and low carbon heating systems. 

 

To achieve Policy M (Support the SCR Transport 

Strategy), we will: 

 Work closely with public and private sector partners 
to deliver joint goals.  

 

To achieve Policy N (Improve Air Quality and Eliminate 

AQMAs), we will: 

 Develop a plan to address the higher level of 
pollutants resulting from freight and deliveries, 
including encouraging low emission vehicles and 
reducing the number of delivery vehicles in our town 
and city centres and/or for the first/last mile 
connections. 

 Work with partners to introduce and enforce low 
emission and clean air zones, supporting them in 
delivering cuts in emissions though investing in 
encouraging sustainable modes and reducing the 
need to travel.  

 Deliver a zero-carbon public transport network, 
which requires upgrading the bus and taxi fleet and 
supporting electrification programmes for our 
railways. 

 

To achieve Policy O (Accelerate the Uptake of ULEVs), we 

will: 

 Encourage the uptake of low and zero emission 
vehicles to improve our air quality. 

 Invest in expanding the network of vehicle charging 
points across our City Region in a coordinated way 
to ensure full coverage. 

 Encourage private vehicles using our roads to be 
ULEVs, and to be used primarily for trips that 
cannot be made by alternatives, such as public 
transport, walking and cycling;  

 Encourage freight vehicles using our roads to be 
electric, hydrogen or hybrid. 

 

To achieve Policy P (Deliver a Clean Transport Network), 

we will: 

 Consider the expansion of the ECO Stars Fleet 
Recognition Scheme to encourage HGV, Bus, 
Coach and Taxi operators to improve efficiency, 
reduce fuel consumption and cut their emissions.  

 Encourage ‘Active Travel’ by sustained investment 
in high quality cycling and walking infrastructure. 

 Support pan-Northern schemes to electrify railways 
and extend EV charging infrastructure along pan 
northern routes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 114



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 31 

6.0 IMPLEMENTING THE STRATEGY 

6.1 INTRODUCTION 

Implementing this Energy Strategy will require joint 

working between the Sheffield City Region (SCR) 

Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA), Local Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP) local authorities, central government, 

private organisations, charitable/community bodies, and 

individual residents of our City Region.  Some of the 

schemes that are implemented following publication of 

this strategy will be brought forward directly from private 

organisations who are looking to optimise their working 

procedures and become more efficient.  Yet, there will be 

schemes that will need some funding or directional 

support by SCR MCA.  These schemes will be assessed 

using the evaluation framework (Section 7.2) then, if 

accepted to proceed, scrutinised by the established MCA 

governance framework which is described in Section 7.3. 

 

 

 

6.2 DEVELOPING FUTURE WORK PROGRAMMES 

 

To ensure that the Goals, Policies and Targets of this 

ambitious Energy Strategy are achieved, an evaluation 

framework has been created by the Carbon Trust to 

ensure that ongoing and future projects around the City 

Region are aligned with SCR MCA’s strategic priorities 

and key strengths.  Any project requiring the input of the 

SCR MCA will be assessed using this evaluation 

framework (Figure X). 

 

We are using this framework to develop a project pipeline 

based on all known projects taking place within our City 

Region and ongoing engagement with stakeholder 

organisations.  By its very nature, this pipeline will be a 

fluid document which will adapt as the low carbon energy 

market grows and shifts and as technological changes 

take place.  It will allow new projects and innovations to 

be considered and our low carbon principles to remain at 

the forefront.  

 

 

 

 
Figure X: Evaluation framework for potential energy schemes 

People & 

Buildings

Business

Infrastructure & 
Skills

Transport ENERGY 

Page 115



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 32 

6.3 GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

This Energy Strategy has been developed by Sheffield 

City Region Mayoral Combined Authority following 

funding and direction from the Department for Business, 

Energy and Industrial Strategy, the evidence gathering 

and reporting of The Carbon Trust, and the input from a 

large number of stakeholders from our City Region.  

These stakeholders include: local authority partners, 

private sector organisations, charitable bodies, academic 

institutions, community groups, and individuals.  It is 

these stakeholders and their projects that will ultimately 

drive forward the ambitions of this Energy Strategy with 

the assistance of the SCR Combined Authority where 

possible/appropriate. 

 

Where the SCR MCA is taking a part, or leading, role 

within a project, particularly where there is financial 

assistance via a grant or loan, the project will be subject 

to the scrutiny of the established SCR governance 

structure.  

 

This governance is in place to:  

 Provide vision and leadership 

 Monitor progress and give visibility to success 

 Be accountable for progress against objectives 

 Ensure adequate resourcing is available 

 Provide an effective link to national bodies 

 

The SCR Infrastructure Board will oversee and monitor 

progress in delivering the SCR Energy Strategy, reporting 

to the SCR Mayoral Combined Authority and Local 

Enterprise Partnership.  However, the promotion, 

funding, project development, and implementation of 

projects and programmes will rely on a whole range of 

partners and stakeholders to deliver, including Central 

Government.   

 

At an individual project level, a ‘Project Steering Group’ 

will be created to provide oversight and direction for the 

projects within the programme(s) as a whole.  They will 

comprise of representatives of relevant projects and 

others who are able to advise, enable and support project 

and programme delivery.  The Steering Group(s) will 

report regularly to the SCR Infrastructure Executive 

Board. 

 

 
Figure X: Sheffield City Region decision making structure 

Individual Project Steering Groups 

Page 116



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 33 

6.4 OUR CLIMATE TARGETS 

THIS SECTION WILL BE COMPLETED FOLLOWING 

THE ANALYSIS BEING CARRIED OUT FOR THE 

TARGETS COMMISSION.  THIS WORK WILL 

RECOMMEND A CARBON TARGET FOR THE CITY 

REGION AS WELL AS UNDERLYING TANGIBLE 

TARGETS AND HOW THESE WILL AFFECT GVA, 

JOBS AND PRODUCTIVITY. 

 

The Sheffield City Region (SCR) Local Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP) and Mayoral Combined Authority 

(MCA) are committed to setting science-based targets, 

with monitoring and data analysis against these 

throughout the lifetime of the Energy Strategy.  Using the 

most rigorous methodologies, as provided by the 

international Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi), 

should give confidence to businesses looking to invest in 

low carbon energy generation, energy infrastructure, and 

energy efficiency within our City Region.  Similarly, an 

environment is being created in which new innovators 

and multi-nationals alike can develop their products and 

businesses; this work has already begun and is being 

showcased at our world-leading Advanced Manufacturing 

Park in Rotherham. 

 

The targets themselves have been developed by an 

independent organisation and who have also provided a 

route for achieving the headline target.  The metrics have 

been chosen as they are measurable and will allow a 

regular assessment of progress towards deliver the goals 

of this Strategy to take place, and, if necessary, adjust the 

path to give us the best chance of success.  The use of 

relative metrics, such as carbon emissions per capita 

(tCO2/capita), carbon intensity (gCO2/kWh) or the ratio of 

GVA to net carbon emissions (£m/MtCO2), will also allow 

for changes in population or economic output to be 

accounted for and provide a benchmark to allow a like-

for-like comparison with other regions or against the UK’s 

national progress. 

 

6.4.1 CLIMATE BUDGET   

 

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetuer adipiscing elit. 

Maecenas porttitor congue massa. Fusce posuere, 

magna sed pulvinar ultricies, purus lectus malesuada 

libero, sit amet commodo magna eros quis urna. Nunc 

viverra imperdiet enim. 

Fusce est. Vivamus a tellus. Pellentesque habitant morbi 

tristique senectus et netus et malesuada fames ac turpis 

egestas. Proin pharetra nonummy pede. 

Mauris et orci. Aenean nec lorem. In porttitor. Donec 

laoreet nonummy augue. 

Suspendisse dui purus, scelerisque at, vulputate vitae, 

pretium mattis, nunc. Mauris eget neque at sem 

venenatis eleifend. Ut nonummy. Fusce aliquet pede non 

pede. 

Suspendisse dapibus lorem pellentesque magna. Integer 

nulla. Donec blandit feugiat ligula. Donec hendrerit, felis 

et imperdiet euismod, purus ipsum pretium metus, in 

lacinia nulla nisl eget sapien. 

 

6.4.2 POLICY TARGETS 

 

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetuer adipiscing elit. 

Maecenas porttitor congue massa. Fusce posuere, 

magna sed pulvinar ultricies, purus lectus malesuada 

libero, sit amet commodo magna eros quis urna. Nunc 

viverra imperdiet enim. Fusce est. Vivamus a tellus. 

Pellentesque habitant morbi tristique senectus et netus et 

malesuada fames ac turpis egestas. Proin pharetra 

nonummy pede. 

Mauris et orci. Aenean nec lorem. In porttitor. Donec 

laoreet nonummy augue. Suspendisse dui purus, 

scelerisque at, vulputate vitae, pretium mattis, nunc. 

Mauris eget neque at sem venenatis eleifend. Ut 

nonummy. Fusce aliquet pede non pede. 

Suspendisse dapibus lorem pellentesque magna. Integer 

nulla. Donec blandit feugiat ligula. Donec hendrerit, felis 

et imperdiet euismod, purus ipsum pretium metus, in 

lacinia nulla nisl eget sapien. Donec ut est in lectus 

consequat consequat. Etiam eget dui. Aliquam erat 

volutpat. Sed at lorem in nunc porta tristique. 

Proin nec augue. Quisque aliquam tempor magna. 

Pellentesque habitant morbi tristique senectus et netus et 

malesuada fames ac turpis egestas. Nunc ac magna. 

Maecenas odio dolor, vulputate vel, auctor ac, accumsan 

id, felis. Pellentesque cursus sagittis felis. Pellentesque 

porttitor, velit lacinia egestas auctor, diam eros tempus 

arcu, nec vulputate augue magna vel risus. Cras non 

magna vel ante adipiscing rhoncus. 

Vivamus a mi. Morbi neque. Aliquam erat volutpat. 

Integer ultrices lobortis eros. Pellentesque habitant morbi 

tristique senectus et netus et malesuada fames ac turpis 

egestas. Proin semper, ante vitae sollicitudin posuere, 

metus quam iaculis nibh, vitae scelerisque nunc massa 

eget pede. Sed velit urna, interdum vel, ultricies vel, 

faucibus at, quam. Donec elit est, consectetuer eget, 

consequat quis, tempus quis, wisi. 

In in nunc. Class aptent taciti sociosqu ad litora torquent 

per conubia nostra, per inceptos hymenaeos. Donec 

ullamcorper fringilla eros. Fusce in sapien eu purus 

dapibus commodo. Cum sociis natoque penatibus et 

magnis dis parturient montes, nascetur ridiculus mus. 

Cras faucibus condimentum odio. Sed ac ligula. Aliquam 

at eros. 

Page 117



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 34 

6.4.3 IMPACT ON GVA, JOBS AND PRODUCTIVITY 

 

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetuer adipiscing elit. 

Maecenas porttitor congue massa. Fusce posuere, 

magna sed pulvinar ultricies, purus lectus malesuada 

libero, sit amet commodo magna eros quis urna. Nunc 

viverra imperdiet enim. 

Fusce est. Vivamus a tellus. Pellentesque habitant morbi 

tristique senectus et netus et malesuada fames ac turpis 

egestas. Proin pharetra nonummy pede. 

Mauris et orci. Aenean nec lorem. In porttitor. Donec 

laoreet nonummy augue. 

Suspendisse dui purus, scelerisque at, vulputate vitae, 

pretium mattis, nunc. Mauris eget neque at sem 

venenatis eleifend. Ut nonummy. Fusce aliquet pede non 

pede. 

Suspendisse dapibus lorem pellentesque magna. Integer 

nulla. Donec blandit feugiat ligula. Donec hendrerit, felis 

et imperdiet euismod, purus ipsum pretium metus, in 

lacinia nulla nisl eget sapien. 

 

Page 118



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 35 

6.5 MEASURING SUCCESS 

These success criteria have been established following analysis by X into ‘future scenarios’.  See ‘REPORT TITLE’ for further details27.  THIS IS TO BE UPDATED FOLLOWING 

THE REPORT BEING COMPLETED BY THE CONTRACTOR.  May be incorporated into section 6.4.2. 

 

Goal 
Success Criteria 

2025 2030 2035 2040 
1. Drive Clean Growth in our 

Local Businesses 
A) 

B) 

C) 

D) 

A) 

B) 

C) 

D) 

A) 

B) 

C) 

D) 

A) 

B) 

C) 

D) 

2. Promote Investment in Low 

Carbon Energy Generation, 

Distribution and Storage 

E) 

F) 

G) 

H) 

E) 

F) 

G) 

H) 

E) 

F) 

G) 

H) 

E) 

F) 

G) 

H) 

3. Improve the Efficiency and 

Sustainability of our 

Neighbourhoods and Built 

Environment 

I) 

J) 

K) 

L) 

I) 

J) 

K) 

L) 

I) 

J) 

K) 

L) 

I) 

J) 

K) 

L) 

4. Accelerate the Transition to 

Ultra-Low Emission Vehicles 

and Transport Systems 

M) 

N) 

O) 

P) 

M) 

N) 

O) 

P) 

M) 

N) 

O) 

P) 

M) 

N) 

O) 

P) 

Table X — Our goals and success criteria

                                                
27 X – Future Scenarios Report Title (2019) 

P
age 119



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 

 36 

6.6 REVIEWING THE ENERGY STRATEGY 

The international Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi) 

recommend that targets should be reviewed and, where 

necessary, altered a maximum of every five years.  

Therefore, this Energy Strategy, its targets, and any 

associated Delivery/Implementation Plans will be 

reviewed and re-issued every five years (2025, 2030, and 

2035).  In 2040, when this Energy Strategy has come to 

the end of its expected life, a decision will be undertaken 

as to whether there will be further iterations. 

Sheffield City Region does reserve the right to alter this 

review policy where social, technological, economic, 

environmental and political influences require action. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



Sheffield City Region        The Green Heart of Great Britain  

 

 37 

68 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 The commercial rollout of fibre broadband across South Yorkshire, funded by BT and Virgin 
Media, is currently expected to reach around 80% of premises across South Yorkshire. The 
remaining coverage will be covered by the Superfast South Yorkshire (SFSY) project, which 
a partnership between the South Yorkshire authorities of Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham 
and Sheffield and BT Openreach, to specifically address intervention areas across South 
Yorkshire that are not commercially viable for providers to service without subsidy. 
 

 1.2 This report provides an update on the SFSY programme, its performance, future delivery and 
take-up rates. The report also begins to set the scene for the potential production of a digital 
infrastructure plan for the City Region, which will aim to build on SFSY and ensure the region 
is well positioned to take advantage of the next wave of digital technology, such as 5G. 
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 The South Yorkshire Superfast Broadband Programme began in 2014, when there was only 
80% of area with Superfast broadband Services.  The intention was to increase this to nearly 

Purpose 

To provide the Chief Executives with an update on the Superfast South Yorkshire programme and to 
introduce a discussion on the need to produce a digital infrastructure plan for the City Region. 

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

This paper would be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme. 

Recommendations 

Chief Executives are asked to: 

1. Note the progress and success of the Superfast South Yorkshire broadband programme. 
 

2. Note the standard condition that is applied to all BMBC planning decisions and agree that 
adoption of these across the City Region should be considered by the Heads of Planning. 
 

3. Agree to work to prepare a SCR Digital Infrastructure Plan. 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD 

29th AUGUST 2019 

SUPERFAST SOUTH YORKSHIRE BROADBAND PROGRAMME AND  
DEVELOPING A DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN FOR THE CITY REGION 

 

Page 123

Agenda Item 8



 

 

100% coverage over the lifetime of the programme.  The Programme was funded from a 
range of sources including Government (through Broadband Delivery UK (BDUK)), local 
authorities and the SCR.  The SCR Local Growth Fund contribution was £10.6m.  
 

 2.2 In May 2019, Openreach achieved their SFSY Phase 1 contractual commitment, claiming 
over 94,496 Total Homes Passed (THP) with speeds greater than 24Mbps (Megabits per 
second) in the intervention area. In recognition of that, prior to that target being met, in 
November 2018 a second contract was signed, covering an additional 9,726 properties with 
fibre broadband across South Yorkshire. 
 

 2.3 Delivery has now commenced on that second contract with 413 premises in Sheffield (Park 
Hill & Kelham Island) going live, already receiving customer orders thanks to early demand 
stimulation activities.  
 

 2.4 Through the SFSY programme, the following will be achieved: 

• Coverage of superfast broadband has increased from 80% to over 97% and will 
reach c99% by 2021; 

• The take-up of superfast broadband has increased from 18% to over 47%; 

• Business parks in South Yorkshire were amongst the first to access gigabit full fibre 
broadband; 

• Business development programmes have helped SMEs to use digital to sustain and 
grow their business; 

• Voucher schemes have covered 50% of our SMEs digital connection and innovation 
costs; and, 

• Sheffield city centre now benefits from arguably the best public access wi-fi network 
in the country. 

•  
 2.5 A key area of challenge for the SFSY project is to ensure new developments are provided 

with appropriate broadband connectivity. This can be achieved through the application of 
appropriate planning conditions for new developments. An example of how this is being 
achieved within Barnsley is where the following standard planning condition below has been 
applied: 

Upon commencement of development, details of measures to facilitate the provision 
of full fibre broadband for the dwellings/development hereby permitted, including a 
timescale for implementation, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with Local Plan Policy I1. 
Definition: 
What is full-fibre? Full-fibre networks use fibre optic cables to connect the exchange 
directly to each premises. Full-fibre connections are capable of delivering speeds 
greater than 1 gigabit per second (Gbps; 1 Gpbs is equal to 1000 Mbps). Full-fibre 
networks are more reliable than copper-based networks and cheaper to maintain and 
operate. Full-fibre networks are also important for supporting high capacity mobile 
broadband networks, particularly future 5G networks. Full-fibre networks, also 
referred to as fibre-to-the-premises (FTTP) or fibre-to-the-home (FTTH), consist of 
fibre optic cables running from the local exchange directly to each premises. Fibre 
optic cables transmit data using light and can carry more data with faster speeds and 
significantly less signal loss with distance compared to copper cables 
 

 2.6 Adopting a similar approach across the City Region would help ensure that new 
developments benefit from appropriate connectivity moving forward. It is therefore proposed 
that this is given further consideration by the Heads of Planning. 
 

Page 124



 

 

 2.7 In addition to delivering the physical infrastructure, driving take up of service is of critical 
importance to achieve the economic benefits of fibre broadband. Overall take up of fibre 
broadband services in the SFSY intervention area currently sits at 47.47%. The original 
demand stimulation strategy had a target of 30% take up by end 2019 but an aspiration for 
50%. It is expected that this aspirational target will be achieved before the end of the 
programme.  
 

 2.8 Over 550,000 premises have taken out a contract for a fibre broadband service. Take up of 
Fibre to The Premise (FTTP) services is 16.7%. It is expected that this will increase when 
more internet service providers (ISPs) offer a FTTP service and business leased lines come 
up for renewal.  
 

 2.9 Demand stimulation activities included mailshots, boosted social media campaigns including 
competitions and giveaways, Digital AdVans in key locations, “Art of the Possible” 
awareness raising events, fully funded digital workshops, leafleting campaigns, and 
attendance at business and residential focused events utilising SFSY’s interactive “speed 
test” game. In December 2018 SFSY secured £20k funding from BDUK for demand 
stimulation, this funding was used for radio advertising with Hallam FM to complement the 
ongoing ERDF funded demand stimulation activities. 
 

 2.10 Within the delivery contract, once 20% take up is triggered, South Yorkshire starts to 
generate finance through a gain share mechanism (clawback).  The clawback is credited into 
an Investment Fund and not released until 2024. As of December 2018, an indicative figure 
of £1,590,341 clawback has been presented by Openreach, but will rise as take-up 
increases. Clawback is split between SCR and BDUK as per the final funding investment 
ratio.  This provides a potential source of funding for investment into future SCR digital 
infrastructure. 
 

 2.11 Although the SFSY is still in delivery, it is clear that digital infrastructure remains critical in 
terms of achieving future sustained growth within the City Region, with the emerging 
Strategic Economic Plan and Local Industrial Strategy seeing further improvements as being 
essential to the long-term health of the economy. 
 

 2.12 As the City Region develops and grows over the next 3-5 years, there will become increased 
demand for high speed, ubiquitous connectivity.  As such there is a clear need for a new 
digital infrastructure plan for the City Region in order to give residents and businesses 
confidence that their future connectivity needs will be met.  It will help to demonstrate that the 
City Region is pro-investment and is open for business. The plan will ensure that the Region 
has the infrastructure in place to meet the following connectivity requirements: 
 

  • To enable businesses to be more productive and more competitive, to grow through 
digitisation; 

• To sustain and grow the digital sector, in new and emerging technologies; 

• To provide ubiquitous coverage, so that residents, workers and visitors are always 
connected; 

• To facilitate rapid adoption of smart services such as 5G, Internet of Things (IoT), 
Connected Vehicles; 

• To enable public services to be delivered more efficiently, more effectively, and to be 
accessible online; 

• To create jobs, to learn and apply the skills needed for the infrastructure, products 
and services; 

• To meet the demands from an increasing resident population, ensuring sufficient 
network capacity; 
 

 

Page 125



 

 

  • For smart city solutions that improve energy use, public safety, traffic management 
and air quality; 

• To ensure that no one is excluded from the digital age and the socio-economic 
benefits of being online; 

• To establish a reputation as a ‘go to’ place for innovators, researchers and investors; 

• To gain a competitive advantage from ensuring supply is available ahead of demand; 
and, 

• To meet consumer demand for higher bandwidth for video streaming, gaming, home 
working. 

 
 2.13 The SFSY project board has been recently working on what the next phase of digital 

infrastructure development might be for the City Region. Several key themes from this work 
are starting to emerge, including: 

• Access for All 
Increase coverage and take-up across the whole of the Region 

• Economic Growth 
Business connectivity and support for competitive advantage 

• Innovation 
Adopt the latest technology innovations at an early stage 

• Exploit Public Assets 
Reuse infrastructure to deliver quickly and economically 

• Enables Wider Benefits 
Support and enable digital inclusion, public service transformation and ‘smart city’ 
Initiatives 
 

 2.14 Using this as a starting point for a broader discussion, it is proposed that the four South 
Yorkshire Authorities work with the SCR Executive Team to scope out the work required to 
produce a fully evidenced, ambitious and deliverable digital infrastructure plan for the City 
Region. This should build on the success achieved to date by SFSY, but seek to look beyond 
current technologies and consider the future roll-out of full fibre and 5G, and the potential use 
of public sector assets in that process. 
 

 2.15 It is recommended that a task and finish group is formed, which the SCR Executive Team 
can instigate, to outline a scope of work required and timescales, before this is agreed by the 
SCR Infrastructure Board. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 An alternative approach would be to revert to a market led approach to the roll-out of digital 
infrastructure once the SFSY programme comes to a conclusion. However, history has 
indicated that hard to reach areas in South Yorkshire will not receive the level of digital 
infrastructure required unless there is a degree of public sector intervention. As such the 
digital infrastructure plan will begin the next phase of what is required. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
None arising from this report. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
None arising from this report. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
None arising from this report. 
 

Page 126



 

 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
None arising from this report. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 None arising from this report. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

   N/A 

 
REPORT AUTHOR  Mark Lynam 
POST  Director of Transport, Housing and Infrastructure 

Director responsible Matt Gladstone 
Email MatthewGladstone@barnsley.gov.uk 

Telephone 01226773445 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 

 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Infrastructure
Last updated on 19/08/19 Programme Status Number of at risk projects 0

Activity Lead Organisation What do we want to achieve in 2019-20? 
(Outcomes)

Status of 
Outcome 
RAG

When did we 
start the 
activity?

When do we expect 
to finish the activity?

Delivery Risks Progress Summary

SCR Energy Strategy Karl Sample The Carbon Trust

Ricardo Energy & 
Environment

University of Sheffield

SCR Executive

Completion of the Strategy and Delivery Plan 
evidence base and report

Completion of Carbon Targets & Future Scenarios

Report following 'Provocation Exercise'

A finalised SCR Energy Strategy

31/03/18 02/01/20 Delays to budgeting for minewater energy 
opportunity mapping.

Some re-writing required to align with teh emerging 
refreshed SEPa and LIS.

Delays to the Carbon Targets & Future Scenarios 
commission.

Phases 1-3 completed by Carbon Trust. The analysis has begun for 
the Carbon Targets & Future Scenarios. The Strategy has been 
completed in draft form. 

Production of the draft SCR Energy Strategy was reschuduled to 
allow sychronisation with the refreshed SEP and emerging LIS.  
Feedback and further stakeholder engagement is being sought 
between July and Oct 2019.  Amendments will be made prior to 
LEP/MCA Boards in November.  Aiming for publication in early 2020.

SCR Duty to Cooperate Garreth Bruff SCR Heads of Planning i) An agreed Statement of Common Ground

ii) Progress reports on joint work to Infrastructure 
Board

01/10/18 30/12/19 * Obtaining political support and agreement; 

* Engaging Counties and PDNP; 

* Officer time to collate evidence & prepare 

Draft SOCG agreed and reported to Infrastructure Board and 
Housing Board alongside wider work programme. Individual districts 
agreed narrative and agreeing internal sign off process over 
summe. Aim is for formal agreement by the of 2019.

SCR Shared Planning 
Approach

Garreth Bruff SCR Heads of Planning 
with Planning Advisory 
Service

i) Local evidence base on cost, income, 
respources, productivity and performance of 
local planning services, 

ii) Service improvement plans for local planning 
teams

01/10/18 31/03/20 * Staff capacity in districts to undertake data 
collection and take part in workshops; 

* Difficulties in accessing data; 

* Failure to engage all disricts

Five districts agreed to be part of wave 1 - Barnsley, Doncaster, 
Sheffield, NE Derbyshire and Bolsover. Data collected from 
individual teams over June and first workshop session held in July to 
process data and prepare first draft reports. Second, action 
planning workshop was in September and initial emerging outputs 
are to be reported in Oct/Nov 2019.

SCR Shared Planning 
Evidence base

Garreth Bruff Heads of Planning with 
external support procured

i)  A more joined up understanding of current 
employment land  and how this meets the 
ambitions set out in the Strategic Economic Plan

ii) a shared understanding of land values and 
viability for housing devt across SCR

01/07/18 i) 30/09/2019

ii) 31/03/2020

* Obtaining agreement and contributions to costs 
from LPAs; 

* Avoiding conflicts with local plan processes; 

* Obtaining required data from all districts

Consultants have been procured to undertake the employment 
land work started work in February, exoerienced some delays in 
collecting site data but work is now progressing with an initial report 
to be reported to Heads of Planning in September before reporting 
to Infrastructure Board in October.

Data collection on planning obligations has begun in order to look 
at viability and land values

Recruitment and retention 
of planning staff

Garreth Bruff SCR Heads of Planning 
working with universities

Strengthen links with universities to attract top 
planning graduates and develop career paths 
for more experienced officers

01/01/19 31/03/20 * Securing staff capacity to work with universities; 

* Budget pressures can impact on local planning 
teams; 

* Competition for  graduates from private sector; 

       

Initial conversations held with both universities, aiming to develop a 
proposal for initial consideration in September.

One Public Estate funded 
projects

Lorna 
Vertigan

All public sector partners 
across SCR

Continued support of the delivery of the 
programme in general and predicted outputs. 
Delivery of specific projects related to the health 
partnerships and place based transformation 
elements of the OPE programme. Develop a 
pipeline of projects for future iterations of the 
programme. 

01/04/15 30/03/25 Continuation of the management of the programme 
post July 2020 when funding ends

All projects are either complete or on track. Work is now ongoing to 
implement recommendations

Public Assets Development 
Group

Lorna 
Vertigan

All public sector partners 
across SCR

Utilise the board and partnerships to investigate 
and deliver additional projects, achieving 
housing growth, capital receipts, revenue savings 
and asset management

01/05/19 Ongoing Having revised the Group's membership with 
Directors, the Group is now reviewing existing projects 
and identifying future joint projects.

The PAD is a development of the former Joint Asset Board which 
focussed on the joint delivery of property based projects. The PAD, 
supported by a Core Officer Group is able to take a strategic view.

SCR Enterprise Zone Annual 
Audit

Laurie 
Thomas

To be procured Updated position on EZ delivery performance 01/112018 30/01/20 failure to appoint a consultant to undertake the Audit The 2018/19 auditwas completed in February 2019.  Propose to go 
out to tender in November 2019 for the 2019/20 audit.

SCR LGF Scheme Pipeline Laurie 
Thomas

Multiple delivery bodies A robust pipeline of schemes ready to 
commence immediately upon confirmation of 
future funding sources

09/07/19 Ongoing capacity of project sponsors to develop business 
cases; availability of availability, subject to a new 
devolution deal.

Workshops and ongoing liaison with Local Authorities and partners 
to prepare a long list of potenitial schemes.  Ongoing activity to 
develop scheme business cases to the point of delivery readiness.  

SCR Investable 
Opportunities Review - 
linked to pipeline

Laurie 
Thomas

Multiple delivery bodies Update the existing well-developed and fully 
costed/ specified portfolio of SCR investment 
opportunites attractive to a range of potential 
investors. Activity to inform SCR preprations for 
MIPIM 2020.

01/07/19 28/02/20 Timely information provided by identified information 
owners.

Scheme sponsors have been approached to update the 
investable propositions information, and further consideration will 
be given as part of the 'infrastructure Packages ' work and 
preparing for MIPIM 2020.

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 9



SCR Planning Work Programme
Last updated on 17/07/19

Work Stream officer 
contact Resources What do we want to achieve in 2019-

20? (Outcomes)

Status 
of 
Outco
me 

When 
did we 
start the 
activity?

When do 
we 
expect to 
finish the 

Delivery Risks Progress Summary Next Steps

1) Duty to Cooperate Garreth 
Bruff

Planning 
Policy 
Managers 
Task Group

i) An agreed SCR wide Statement of 
Common Ground

ii) Quarterly progress reports on joint 
work to Infrastructure Board

01/10/18 30/10/19

* Obtaining political support and 
agreement; 

* Engaging Counties and PDNP; 

* Officer time to collate evidence & 
prepare narrative

Draft SOCG agreed and reported to 
Infrastructure Board alongside wider work 
programme. 

Individual districts amended/commented on 
narrative.

Meetings/discussions with both counties and 
PDNP planners held in May/June.

Some districts have agreed their own internal 
sign off process.

Internal sign off within each LPA 
over summer

Final sign off by MCA in autumn

2) Shared Planning 
Approach

Jenna 
Rumley

PAS with 
Doncaster 
Council

i) Local evidence base on cost, 
income, respources, productivity and 
performance of local planning services, 

ii) Service improvement plans for local 
planning teams

01/10/18 31/12/19

* Staff capacity in districts to undertake 
data collection and take part in 
workshops; 

* Difficulties in accessing data; 

* Failure to engage all disricts

Five districts are part of wave 1 - Barnsley, 
Doncaster, Sheffield, NE Derbyshire and 
Bolsover. 

Data collected by individual planning teams 
over June 

First workshop session held in July to process 
data and prepare an initial draft reports

Second workshop TBC for 
September, this will agree the 
opportunities for improvement, 
change and collaboration.
 
A fuller report will be brought 
back to Heads of Planning in Nov

3) Shared Planning 
Evidence base

Garreth 
Bruff

Joe 
Jenkinson

Planning 
Policy 
Managers 
Task Group, 
Lichfields 
procured

TBC

i)  Joined up understanding of current 
employment land  and how this meets 
the ambitions set out in the Strategic 
Economic Plan

ii) a shared understanding of land 
values and viability for housing devt 
across SCR

01/10/2018

25/01/2019

i) 30/09/19

ii) 31/03/20

* Obtaining agreement and 
contributions to costs from LPAs; 

* Avoiding conflicts with local plan 
processes; 

* Obtaining required data from all 
districts

Lichfields have been procured to undertake 
the employment land work, starting in 
February.

Initial analysis of macro economic trends and 
regional/national context completed.

Delays in collecting site data and shape files 
frm some districts have meant new milestones 
have had to be agreed.

Lichfields are meeting with stakeholders and 
analysing of sites over June/July

Data collection on planning obligations has 
begun in order to look at viability and land 
values

First draft of employment land 
report to be shared with Task 
Group at end of July

Next steps on viability work TBC 

4) Recruitment and 
Retention of Staff

Garreth 
Bruff TBC

Strengthen links with universities to 
attract best planning graduates and 
develop career paths for more 
experienced officers

01/03/19 31/03/20

* Securing staff capacity to work with 
universities; 

* Budget pressures can impact on local 
planning teams; 

* Competition for  graduates from 
private sector; 

* Meetings needs of different districts 
and areas

Initial conversations held with Sheffield 
University on graduate placements and 
recruitment and spoken to Sheffield Hallam 
University to disuss apprenticeship programme. 
A face to face meeting will be held in 
September before heads of Planning later that 
month.

Develop a proposal with both 
universities for initial 
consideration by Heads of 
Planning.

Report back  to the September 
meeting.

P
age 130



Infrastructure Board Forward Plan 2019/20: 

 Thematic strategy and policy leadership 

 Programme - development and delivery 

 Performance and Risk Management 

 Funding and Financial Decision Making (up to £2m) 

 

Date Suggested Agenda items 

24/10/19  SCR Energy Strategy – Revised Draft  

 Strategic Employment Land Study  

 Infrastructure Investment decisions (tbc)  

 Performance and risk management  
 
OTHER MATTERS TBC 
 

02/01/19  
(date likely to change) 

 Infrastructure Packages 

 Utilities Update 

 Spatial Planning Performance 

 Infrastructure Investment decisions (tbc) 

 One Public Estate Round 8 
 
OTHER MATTERS TBC 
 

w/c 24/02/20  SCR Draft Digital Infrastructure Plan  

 Enterprise Zone Audit 

 Spatial Packages - Revised 

 Infrastructure Investment decisions (tbc) 
 
OTHER MATTERS TBC 
 

w/c 04/05/20 tbc  
 

 

w/c 29/06/20 tbc 
 

w/c 24/08/20 tbc 
 

w/c 19/10/20 tbc 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 131

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Strategic Economic Plan and Local Industrial Strategy Review
	Appendix 1

	7 Draft SCR Energy Strategy
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Digital Infrastructure
	9 Infrastructure Board Work Programme Dashboard
	Infrastructure work programme
	Planning

	10 Forward Plan 2019/20



